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“We welcome you!”

The City Council meetings the 2nd and 4th Monday of each month at 6:00 p.m.
in the City Council Chambers in City Hall, 300 Main Street

(unless the meeting falls on a State Holiday then subject to change by City Council)

For more information call 501-975-8617 or visit our website at www.nlr.ar.gov

Municipal Institutions Constitute the Strength of Free Nations.
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City Council Agenda | 2
August 14, 2017 Council Meeting 6:00 p.m.

“The City of North Little Rock welcomes people of diverse cultures and beliefs. Any religious viewpoint
expressed during invocation, or at any other time during the meeting, reflects only the personal opinion of the
speaker. It is not intended to proselytize, advance, or disparage any religious belief.”

COMMUNICATIONS
1. Glinda Craigmyle, Mayor's Office memorandum re: Retail Beer off Premises &
Small Farm Wine — Replacement from Laura Picklesimer, for Corner Store #1795,
9723 Maumelle Boulevard, by Randy Horne.

2. Glinda Craigmyle, Mayor’s Office memorandum re: Retail Beer off Premises &
Small Farm Wine — Replacement from Laura Picklesimer, for Corner Store #1787,
9600 Hwy 165 East, by Randy Horne.

3. Glinda Craigmyle, Mayor’s Office memorandum re: Retail Beer off Premises —
Replacement from Mohammad and Small Farm Wine — NEW, for Broadway Express
Inc, (fka) AR Group of C Stores #2, 2910 East Broadway, by Kabir H. Mir.

4. Glinda Craigmyle, Mayor’s Office memorandum re: Refail Beer off Premises —
Replacement of Randall Carter, for Protho Junction Shell (fka) Shell Hope Mart
N.L.R., 2522 Jacksonville Hwy, by Donnie Miller.

5. Karen Scott, Finance Director, memorandum to City Clerk Diane Whitbey, re:
Energy Risk Management Committee ECR Adjustment Factor for August, 2017
(.0052 positive).

6. Karen Scott, Finance Director, FY 16 Audited Financial Statements — North Little
Rock Electric Department.

7. Julie Fisher, Mayor’s Office flyer re: Fresh 2 You Mobile Market.
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PRESENTATIONS

SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARING(S) 3 minutes
Please sign in with the City Clerk before the meeting convenes at 6:00 p.m.

CITIZENS PUBLIC COMMENT ON NUMBERED LEGISLATION 3 minutes

Please sign in with the City Clerk before the meeting convenes at 6:00 p.m.
INCLUDES ALL PUBLIC HEARINGS
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UNFINISHED BUSINESS
None.

CONSENT AGENDA

R-17-131  Mayor Smith
Accepting a FEMA Grant for $363,637.00 under the FY 2016 Assistance to
Firefighters Grant Program for the purchase of a rescue vehicle for the North
Little Rock Fire Department; appropriating the City’s local share from Act 833
Funds

R-17-132  Mayor Smith
Appointing Donald A. Skrivanos to the position previously held by Charles Lee
Jones on the North Little Rock Parks & Recreation Commission

R-17-133  Mayor Smith
Reappointing Gladys M. Webb to the North Little Rock Housing & Building
Board of Adjustment & Appeals (Sign Board)

R-17-134  Mayor Smith
Certifying local government endorsement of CFO Network to participate in the
Tax Back Program as authorized by Section 15-4-2706(D) of the Consolidated
Incentive Act of 2003

R-17-135  Mayor Smith
Certifying local government endorsement of Ben E. Keith Company, d/b/a Ben E.
Keith Foods and Ben E. Keith Mid-South, to participate in the Tax Back Program
as authorized by Section 15-4-2706(D) of the Consolidated Incentive Act of 2003
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NEW BUSINESS

RESOLUTIONS

R-17-136  Mayor Smith
Recognizing Jerry Jones for his lifetime of accomplishments and service to the
City of NLR; declaring August 3, 2017 as “Jerry Jones Day”

R-17-137 Mayor Smith
Extending the current Volume Discount Agreement with the City of Little Rock
for Class I and Class IV Solid Waste Landfill Services

R-17-138  Mayor Smith
Accepting the low bid of Bob Kennedy Construction for the extension of Counts
Massie Road; appropriating funds (§445,131.42 - City’s Share)

R-17-139  Mayor Smith
Accepting the low bid of Legacy Housing LLC for Street and Utility
Improvements, 4th, 5th, Poplar and Magnolia Streets; appropriating funds
(8535,734.00)

R-17-140  Mayor Smith
Accepting the low bid of Red Roc, Inc. for Parker Street Improvements;
appropriating funds ($68,582.80)
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R-17-141  Mayor Smith
Approving and certifying amounts of liens to be filed with the Pulaski County
Tax Collector against certain real properties in the City of North Little Rock,
Arkansas as a result of grass cutting expenses and abatement of other nuisances

Convene a public hearing

R-17-142 Mayor Smith
Appropriating funds for the purchase of two (2) boom trucks for the North Little
Rock Sanitation Department ($§/64,631.94 + tax)

ORDINANCES
None filed.

PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS
All persons wishing to speak must have completed a public comment card and return it
to the City Clerk before this meeting is convened, speakers have 3 minutes to address

their topic
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Respectfully submitted,

Diane Whitbey, CAMC /
City Clerk and Treasurer

Words to Live by:
“True humor is fun - it does not put down, kid, or mock.
It makes people feel wonderful, not separate, different, and cut off.
True humor has beneath it the understanding that we are all in this together.”
—Hugh Prather

For more information, visit our website at www.nlr.ar.gov.
To view council legislation, exhibits, etc., go to the link above, then click on the

Government Tab, then select Council Agenda.
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%\ OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

NR

NORTH LITILE ROCK

JOE A. SMITH Yy PHONE (501) 975-8601
MAYOR FAX (501) 975-8633
mayor@nlr.ar.gov

CITY HALL
P.0. BOX 5757
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72119-5757
website: www.nir.ar.gov

MEMORANDUM
TO: Members of the North Little Rock City Council
FROM: Glinda Craigmyle
DATE: July 31, 2017
SUBJECT: Alcoholic Beverages Permit Request

For your information, I have enclosed a copy of the Assignment and Comments of
Officials form from the State of Arkansas, Alcoholic Beverage Control Division.

The following applicant has applied for an off premises retail beer & small farm
winery permit with a change of manager from Laura A. Picklesimer:

Randy Horne

Corner Store #1795
9723 Maumelle Blvd.
North Little Rock, AR

Please note the 15 day comment period referred to in the final paragraph of the
Comment page.

Thank you.

Attachments

FILED AM_LUS
BY_Clinda Crainmnule - P

DATE___%3[-(4
Diane Whi&)ﬁ)%ijry Clerk and Collector

Nortt Ligdle Roc
RECEIVED by A - m

"An Equal Opportunity Employer”
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Date Received: 07/07/2017 Date Assigned: 07/21/2017
Applicant: RANDY HORNE D.0.B: 09/24/1956

Green Card Number {(Permanent Resident Alien):

Home Address: 8903 Burning Tree Road, Pensacola, FL, 32514

Home Phone: Business Phone : 85(0-549-2876 Cell Phone: 850-454-1134
Trade Name: CORNER STORE #1795

Former Trade Name: CORNER STORE #1795

Business Address : 9723 Maumelle Blvd., North Little Rock County pPujaski

Type Of Investigation: Retail Beer off Premises & Small Farm Wine - Replacement from
Laura Picklersimer
00795

Dancing, if requested;

Comments / Remarks : gn site representative Cammie Matthews

Copies Of Assignmentand  Mayor Joe Smith & City Council
Comment Form Mailed to:
Michae! Davis, Chief of Police
Doc Holladay, Sheriff

Larry Jegley, Prosecuting Attorney

Assigned to Investigator:

Stockholders ! Partners / LLC
Members:





REPCPUBOLOL Im%ﬁ
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COMMENTS OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS

APPLICANT'S NAME: RANDY HORNE

TYPE OF APPLICATION: Retall Beer off Premises & Small Farm Wine - Replacement from Laura
Picklersimer

BUSINESS NAME: CORNER STORE #1795

BUSINESS ADDRESS: 9723 Maumelle Blvd., North Little Rock, AR, 72113

DATE OF APPLICATION: 07/07/2017

NAME OF PUBLIC OFFICIAL:

TITLLE OF OFFICIAL:

OFFICIAL MAILING ADDRESS:

PHONE :

SIGNATURE OF OFFICIAL.: DATE:

NAME OF AGENCY OR COURT:

Do you have any chjections to the issuance of this permit?

{Yes orNo)

If yes, please explain your objections below:

To ensure your comments are available at the time this application is considered by the Director, please complete and return
this form to ABC Administration, 1515 West 7th Street, Suite 503, Little Rock, AR 72201, within fifteen (15) days of receipt. In
compliance with the Freedom of Information Act, this Comment Form will become a matter of public record. Pursuant to
ACA 3-2-103, a nationat fingerprint based background check will be, or has been, conducted. At ACICs request, do
not run your own criminal history check through ACIC.

Printed On: 07/21/2017 Revised 03/11/2018
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STATE OF ARKANSAS
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE GONTROL DIVISION

APPLICATION FOR RETAIL BEER PERMIT

Check One: () ON PREMISES CONSUMPTION New Application
Replacement
(X OFF PREMISES CONSUMPTION Permit No.

[, or we, do hereby make application to the State of Arkansas for a permit to sell beer at retail, and do hereby
submit answers to the following questions under cath for your approval:

CST Arkansas Stations, LLC FEIN#  90-0815630
Cotporate /Partnership/LLC Name :
NAME Randy Cremo Horne
First : Middle , Last
HOME ADDRESs 8903 Burning Tree Rd, Pensacola, FL 325{%  Escambia
Street City Zip County
BUSINESS NAME Corner Store #1795 FORMER NAME__ Corner Store #1795
BUSINESS ADDREss 9723 Maumelie Blvd N. Little Rock 72113
Street City Zip County Township

Is proposed location inside or outside city limits? __Y €S

Is the beer to be sold in connection with any other business? Yes (A) If so, state type of business

(café, drug store, pooi hall, service station, convenience store, etc) Convenience Store w/ Fuel

(B) I beeris fo be sold in connection with a

motor fuel sales husiness give number of gasoline and/or diesel pumps at each location 16 e

Are you the owner of the proposed premises? __Y €8 Do you have the premises leased? :N/A '
Iif leased, give name and address of owner N/A i :

Will there be dancing on the premises? No Dance Space % :J

Does anyone now hold a beer or any other permit at this focation? Yes If 50, give name arr;;d per)mit
number(s) _Corner Store #1795 License #795 Lj

Has anyone, to your knowledge, held a beer or any ofher permit at this location? _Y€s If s0, give name

and permit number(s) _Corner Store #1795 License #795

Do you or any other persen inferested in this permit hold any other type alcoholic beverage:permit? Yes
If held, give name, place and permit number(s) _Circle K #6345, Texarkangi/AR License # 647
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New Application
Replacement
Permit No.

STATE OF ARKANSAS
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL DIVISION

APPLICATION FOR:

X Small Farm Winery - Retail 1 Small Farm Winery - Wholesale 01 Small Farm Winery - Manufacturer

f, or we, do hereby make application for the permit noted above and do hereby submit answers to the
falfowing questions under oath for your approval:

C5T Mevansas Stobons LLC cent_ 400815630

Corporate/Partnership/t LC Narme

NAME Randy Cremo Horne
First Middte Last
HOME ADDRESS 8903 Burning Tree Rd Pensacola FlL. 32514 Escambia
Street City State Zip County

BUSINESS NAME Qbm%%me%\"(% FoRMER nave Corner Store #1795

BUSINESS ADDRES®723 Maumelle Blvd,, North Little Rock, AR 72113 Pulaski
Street City State Zip County

Yes

Is proposed location inside or outside city limits?

If application is for retail level, are you a grocery store, convenience store or liquor sfore? ()Q Yes ( } No
(Convenience stores must maintain a $7,500.00 inventory of human consumables.)

\ ‘
If apptication is for manufacturing, (1) how many gallons do you contemplate manufacturing? t\‘ “

(2) What was your total praduction for the last calendar year? N “\(

Are you the owner of the proposed premises? Yes If leased, give name and address of
owner N/A

Does anyone now hold any other permit(s) at this location’? Yes if s0, give name, type
and permit number(s) N/A

Has anyone, to your knowledge, held any other type permit(s) at this location? Yes If so, give

narme and permit number(s) ___Corner Store #1795 License #795
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If applicant is a partnership, give names and addresses of all partners:

N/A

If applicant is a corporat:on/LLC give (A) Name and address of stockholders and amount of stock held by
each:

N/A

{B) Name and address of President and Secretary:

Brian Bednarz 1347 Quiet Cove Court, Gulf Breeze, FL 32563 - VP
Randy Horne 8903 Burning Tree Road, Pensacola, FL 32514 - Asst. Secretary

i“-)

NOTE: Schedule A is to be completed by each party to this application and is to be considered a~part of the
application. Any mis-statements or concealment of fact W!ll be grounds for refusal of appllcat[on or

revocation of permit(s) if later disclosed. -

. T
Sighed this Q&b@“ day of \JU\/LZ

S;gnature of Applicant or Managing Agent

Subscribed and sworn to before me this @ {((.\? day of ~J e OQO { 7

My Commission Expires: %!:)( l 001‘5

Explres 4/21/2018
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JOE A. SMITH Y\ PHONE (501) 9758601

MAYOR FAX (501) 975-8633
mayor@nir.ar.gov

CITY HALL
P.0. BOX 5757
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72119-5757
website: www.nlr.ar.gov

MEMORANDUM
TO: Members of the North Little Rock City Council
FROM: Glinda Craigmyle /M_/
DATE: July 31,2017
SUBJECT: Alcoholic Beverages Permit Request

For your information, I have enclosed a copy of the Assignment and Comments of
Officials form from the State of Arkansas, Alcoholic Beverage Control Division.

The following applicant has applied for an off premises retail beer & small farm
winery permit with a change of manager from Laura A. Picklesimer:

Randy Horne
Corner Store #1787
9600 Hwy 165 East
North Little Rock, AR
Please note the 15 day comment period referred to in the final paragraph of the
Comment page.
Thank you.
Attachments
FILED am \2\9 . em,
py_Elindo Craigyle D,
pate___ -3k 14

Diase Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

.
RECEIVED by
d N

"An Equal Opportunity Employer”
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Date Received: 07/07/2017 Date Assigned: 07/21/2017
Applicant: RANDY HORNE D.0.B: 09/24/1956

Green Card Number (Permanent Resident Alien):

Home Address: 8903 Burning Tree Road, Pensacola, FL, 32514

Home Phone: Business Phone : 850-549-2876 Cell Phone: 850-454-1134
Trade Name: CORNER STORE #1787

Former Trade Name: CORNER STORE #1787

Business Address : 9600 Hwy 165 East, North Little Rock County Pulaski

Type Of Investigation: Retail Beer off Premises & Small Farm Wine - Replacement from
Laura Picklesimer
03266

Dancing, if requested:
Comments / Remarks : on site representative Mary Bennett

Coples Of Assignmentand  Mayor Joe Smith & City Council
Comment Form Mailed to: :

Michael Davis, Chief of Police
Doc Holladay, Sheriff

Larry Jegley, Prosecuting Attorney

Assigned to Investigator:

Stockholders / Partners / LLC
Members:
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ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL DIVISION 1l

COMMENTS OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS it

APPLICANT'S NAME: RANDY HORNE

TYPE OF APPLICATION: Retail Beer off Premises & Small Farm Wine - Replacement from Laura
Picklesimer

. BUSINESS NAME: CORNER STORE #1787

BUSINESS ADDRESS: 9600 Hwy 165 East, North Little Rock, AR, 72117

DATE OF APPLICATION: 07/07/2017

NAME OF PUBLIC OFFICIAL:

TITLE OF OFFICIAL:

OFFICIAL MAILING ADDRESS:

PHONE :

SIGNATURE OF OFFICIAL: DATE:

NAME OF AGENCY OR COURT:

Do you have any objections to the issuance of this permit?

{ Yesor No}

If yes, please explain your chjections below:

To ensure your comments are avaitable at the time this application is considered by the Director, please complete and return
this form to ABC Administration, 1515 West 7th Street, Suite 503, Little Rock, AR 72201, within fifteen {15) days of receipt. In
compliance with the Freedom of information Act, this Comment Form will become a matter of public record, Pursuant to
ACA 3-2-103, a national fingerprint based background check wilt be, or has been, conducted. At ACICs request, do
not run your own criminal history check through ACIC.

Printed On:  07/21/2017 Revised 03/11/2016





o b |

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL. DIVISION
APPLICATION FOR RETAIL. BEER PERMIT

Check One: () ON PREMISES CONSUMPTION New Application
Replacement
(X OFF PREMISES CONSUMPTION Permit No.

I, or we, do hereby make application to the State of Arkansas for a permit to sell beer at retail, and do hereby
submit answers to the following guestions under oath for your approval:

CST Arkansas Stations, LLC FEIN# 90-0815630
Corporate /Partnership/LLC Name :
NAME Randy Cremo Horne
First : Middle Last

HOME ADDREsSs 8903 Burning Tree Rd, Pensacola, FL 32514 Escambia

Stroet City Zip County
BUSINESS NAME Corner Store #1787 FORMER NAME__Corner Store #1787
BUSINESS ADDRESS 9600 H\Ny 165 E N. Little Rock 72117

Street City Zip County Township

Is proposed location inside or outside city fimits? __Y €S

!s the beer to be sold in connection with any other business? Yes {A) If so, state type of business

(café, drug store, pool hall, service station, convenience store, stc) _Gonvenience Store:w/ Fuel
(B) If beeristo besoldin corinection with a
.2

J

motor fuel sales business give number of gasoline and/or diesel pumps at each location 22

Are you the owner of the proposed premises? __Y€S Do you have the premises leased?~ N/A
D

N/A

If leased, give name and address of owner

Will there be dancing on the premises? No Dance Space X

Does ahyone now held a beer or any other permit at this location? Yes If s0, give hame and permit

Corner Store #1787 License #3266

number(s)
Has anyone, to your knowledge, held a beer or any ofher permit at this location? Yes If s0, give name

and permit number(s)_Corner Store #1787 License #3266

Do you or any other parson interested in this permit hold any other type alcoholic beverage:permit? Yes

If held, glve name, place and permit number(s) I Ciicley’ K #6345 lfexarkana, AR License # 647

- ,
P
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New Application
Replacement X
Permit No.

STATE OF ARKANSAS
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL DIVISION

APPLICATION FOR;

M Small Farm Winery - Retail O Small Farm Winery - Wholesale [ Small Farm Winery - Manufacturer

|, or we, do hereby make application for the permit hoted above and do hereby submit answers to the
following aquestions under oath for your approval:

CSU Pekansas Sobions LLC cen AD-DR 5630
Corporate/Partnership/LLC Name
name Randy Cremo Horne
First Micidle Last
‘ HoME ADDREss 8903 Burning Tree Rd Pensacola FL 32514 Escambia
| Street City State Zip County

E BUSINESS NAME G)M‘aﬁ@(l)\[fi- #1197 rorwmer nave_Corner Store #1787

BUSINESS ADDRESS 2600 Hwy 165 E, North Little Rock, AR 72117 Garland
Street City State Zip County

Yes

fs proposed location inside or outside city limits?
If application is for retail level, are you a grocery store, convenlence store or fiquor store? (X) Yes () No
{Convenience stores must maintain a $7,500.00 inventory of human consumables.)

If application is for manufacturing, (1) how many gallons do you contemplate manufacturing? M Hl(

(2) What was your tatal production for the last calendar year? N \ {)\‘

Are you the owner of the proposed premises? Yas If leased, give name and address of
owner N/A

Does anyone now hold any other permit(s) at this location? Yes if so, give name, type
and permit number(s) N/A

Has anyone, to your knowledge, held any other type permit(s) at this tocation? Y es If so, give

name and permit number(s) ___Corner Store #1787 License #3266






L

Give nearest distance, building to building, from CHURCH _2.43 miles sCHOOL _4.30 miles

If applicant is a partnership, give names and addresses of all partners:

if applicant is a corporation give (A) Name and address of stockholders and amount of stock held by
each:

N/A

(B) Name and address of President and Secretary:

Brian Bednarz 1347 Quiet Cove Court, Gulf Breeze, FL 32563 .vyp
Randy Horne, 8903 Burning Tree Road, Pensacola, FL 32514 - Asst, Secretary

Schedule "A"is to be completed by each party to this application and is to be considered a part of
application. Any mis-statements or concealment of fact will be grounds for refusal of application, or
revocation of permit(s) iIf later disclosed.

It making application for a Small Farm Winery-Manufacturer, I certify that | meet the criteria as
described in ACA 3-5-1602(c)(1) and enclose a copy of my Federal Basic Permit and proof of my annual
production from the calendar year previous to my application (form/s TTB F §120.17).

Signed this QVCQ%L day of mﬂ’a . &O { ?

Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of

/ 3

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: A” Q( ) &0@

WY 40, DEBORAH M. BRATTON
Fr NOTARY PUBLIC

% JSSTATE OF FLORIDA

LS/ Comimit FF114752

AEE®  Expires 4/21/2018






%O’) OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

NR

NORTH LITILE ROCK

JOE A. SMITH Y\Y PHONE (501) 975-8601
MAYOR FAX (501) 975-8633
mayor@nlir.ar.gov

CITY HALL
P.0. BOX 5757
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72119-5757
website: www.nlr.ar.gov

MEMORANDUM
TO: Members of the North Little Rock City Council
FROM: Glinda Craigmyle
DATE: July 31, 2017
SUBJECT: Alcoholic Beverages Permit Request

For your information, I have enclosed a copy of the Assignment and Comments of
Officials form from the State of Arkansas, Alcoholic Beverage Control Division.

The following applicant has applied for an off premises retail beer and permit with
a change of manager from Mohammad Alam:
Off premises Small Farm Winery new:

Kabir H. Mir
Broadway Express Inc.
2910 East Broadway
North Little Rock, AR

Please note the 15 day comment period referred to in the final paragraph of the

Comment page.

Thank you.

Attachments
FILBD am LD e,
BY Glindg (ijﬁmt)g \e, - l&o\f\_/_gn
DATE_ 3 3(- (=

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Colleotor

North Li
RECEIVED by 3 L he s —
CJ w

"An Equal Opportunity Employer”





e g ommy mmrw s

REPASSGOLO2 N
ASSIGNMENT DEJO03-DELOT Iﬂl Em%ll !’l

Date Received: 07/24/2017 Date Assigned: 07/26/2017
Applicant: KABIR H. MIR D.0.B: 06/25/1980

Green Card Number (Permanent Resident Alien):
Home Address: 13500 Chenal Parkway, Little Rock, AR, 72211

- Home Phone: Business Phone : 501-945-6927 Cell Phone: 470-253-5520
Trade Name: BROADWAY EXPRESS INC
Former Trade Name: ARKANSAS GROUP OF C STORES #2

Business Address : 2910 East Broadway, North Little Rock County Pulaski

Type Of Investigation: Retail Beer off Premises - Replacement from Mohammad Alam
00905 Small Farm Wine - NEW

Dancing, if requested:
Comments f Remarks :

Copies Of Assignmentand  Mayor Joe Smith & City Council
Comment Form Mailed to:

Michael Davis, Chief of Police

Doc Holladay, Sheriff

Larry Jegley, Prosecuting Attorney

Assigned to Investigator:

Stockholders / Partners / LLC Banasree R Chowdhury, 13500 Chenal Pkwy, Little Rock, AR,
Members: 72211
DOB: 2/12/1987

Kazi Naoroze, 13500 Chenal Pkwy, Littie Rock, AR, 72211
DOB: 8/2/1978





o Im ﬁ%ﬁl’ m
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL DIVISION AR

COMMENTS OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS )

APPLICANT'S NAME: KABIR H. MIR

TYPE OF APPLICATION: Retail Beer off Premises - Replacement from Mohammad Alam
00905 Small Farm Wine - NEW

BUSINESS NAME: BROADWAY EXPRESS INC
BUSINESS ADDRESS: 2910 East Broadway, North Little Rock, AR, 72114

DATE OF APPLICATION: 07/24/2017

NAME OF PUBLIC OFFICIAL:

TITLE OF OFFICIAL.:

OFFICIAL MAILING ADDRESS:

PHONE :

SIGNATURE OF OFFICIAL: DATE:

NAME OF AGENCY OR COURT:

Do you have any objections to the issuance of this permit?

{ Yes orNo |}

If yes, please explain your objections below:

To ensure your comments are available at the time this application is considered by the Director, please complete and return
this form to ABC Administration, 1515 West 7th Street, Suite 503, Little Rock, AR 72201, within fifteen (15) days of receipt. In
compliance with the Freedom of Information Act, this Comment Form will become a matter of public record. Pursuant to
ACA 3-2-103, a national fingerprint based background check will be, or has been, conducted. At ACICs request, do
not run your own criminal history check through ACIC.

Printed On:  07/26/2017 Revised 03/11/2016





- NERERERRI

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL DIVISION
APPLICATION FOR RETAIL BEER PERMIT

Check One: () ON PREMISES CONSUMPTION New Application o
Replacement
E C& (‘/(OFF PREMISES CONSUMPTION Permit No.

I, or we, do hereby make application to the State of Arkansas for a permit to sell beer at retail, and do hereby
submit answers to the following questions under oath for your approval:

prnoadivay G prusy FEIN# @[ -54 00235
Corporate /Partnership/LL.C Name
NAME__[KA D [~ HOSe v My~
First Middle Last
HOME ADDRESS (2570 Clune] pfcwoy 1l pek 72211 pu LBSKET
Street City Zip ! County
BUSINESS NAME _ /5] omﬂw‘y APUDSS  f M. FORMER NAME C S‘f@w
BUSINESS ADDRESS__ 2910 £ Browelvy 54 p. [ HLod Frng puimsl2T  “y
| Street “ City Zip County Townshfp
| ) o3
| Is proposed location inside or outside city limits? 4?} M f*(.k -

\

Is the beer to be sold in connection with any other business? A/ (A) If so, state type of” bUS|ness

L
(cafe drug store, pool hall, service station, convenience store, etc.) _ - f’;

U
(B) If beeris to be sold in cor}p\pcﬁon with a

motor fuel sales business give number of gasoline and/or diesel pumps at each location X
7

Are you the owner of the proposed premises? N(} Do you heve the premises leased? ’Z{é

| If leased, give name and address of owner ___ 1147 Dev
1 Will there be dancing on the premises? &/gz Dance Space X "’

number(s) OH0 90 A | R
Has anyone, to your knowiedge, held a beer or any other permit at this Eoca;i,en_? Zfié | If €9, gEV‘e name

™.
and permit number(s) O”CD “’Q 5 107 g
0y AR SR IF L Ty

Do you or any otheq aergorantﬁrgs ed m thls permit hold any other type alcohohc beverage permit? A 0

i held, give name, place and permlt number(s)

(“w“s ﬁs; ;g 4

[
g o






[

New Application
Replacement i
Permit Ne,

STATE OF ARKANSAS
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL DIVISION

APPLICATION FOR:

E@aii Farm Winery - Retail [l Small Farm Winery - Wholesale O Small Farm Winery - Manufacturer

|, or we, do hereby make application for the permit noted above and do hereby submit answers to the
following duestions under ocath for your approval:

BJIOAJMW Ex pnen 4 ML FEIN#_S]- 54 08 235~
~Corporate/Partnefship/LLC Name
NAME KAPR s HO xne ™ My B
First Middle Last
HOME ADDRESS /% 500 cyunel poftoy LA Lo e 7ol PR
Street City State Zip County

BUSINESS NAME 9«‘706\0! Owjﬁf fo. od £ 618 FORMER NAME

BUSINESS ADDRESS _23 18 £ froachsy ¢F M [H0Pede Hp 204 PuipsyT
Street City State Zip County

Is proposed location inside or outside city limits? )iej

7

if application is for retail level, are you a grocery store, cmvenience store or liquor store? M/Yes {) No

{Convenience stores must maintain a $7,500.00 inventory of human consumables.)

If apptication is for manufacturing, (1) how many gallons do you contemptate manufacturing? AT

(2) what was your total production for the fast calendar year? Ne A

Are you the owner of the proposed premises? 7\/ O If leased, give name and add{:é:}ss of
owner A mam e, U’:} ; g,:f

Does anyone now hold any other permit(s) at this location? pad) If s0, give;;am'é:; type
and permit number(s) 00 90 4 Ny U
Has anyone, to your knowledge, held any other type permit(s) at this location? Zi) If %3 give

" name and permit number(s) D905
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% OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

MR

NORTH LITILE ROCK

JOE A. SMITH " WY PHONE (501) 975-8601

MAYOR FAX (501) 975-8633
mayor@nlr.ar.gov

CITY HALL
P.0. BOX 5757
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72119-5757
website: www.nlr.ar.gov

MEMORANDUM
TO: Members of the North Little Rock City Council
FROM: Glinda Craigmyle /ﬁ'{/
DATE: July 31, 2017
SUBJECT: Alcoholic Beverages Permit Request

For your information, I have enclosed a copy of the Assignment and Comments of
Officials form from the State of Arkansas, Alcoholic Beverage Control Division.

The following applicant has applied for an off premises retail beer permit with a
change of manager from, Donnie Miller:

Randall D. Carter
Protho Junction Shell
2522 Jacksonville Hwy.
North Little Rock, AR

Please note the 15 day comment period referred to in the final paragraph of the.
Comment page.

Thank you.

Attachments

5 g
FILBD aM_|2515 M.
BYG) i nda Cmi':}m%le = Admfﬂ

DAIE ; Spe 3|13
Diasic Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

Noréh Li ,
RECEIVED hy E t(F “Thoma 5

"An Equal Opportunity Employer”






REPASSGOILO0L

ASSIGNMENT

Date Received: 07/20/2017
Applicant: DONNIE MILLER

Green Card Number {(Permanent Resident Alien):
Home Address: 1445 Gardenia, Conway, AR, 72034

Home Phone: Business Phone :
Trade Name: PROTHO JUNCTION SHELL
Former Trade Name: SHELL HOPE MART N.L.R.

Business Address : 2522 Jacksonville Hwy., North Little Rock

PIGHIGI- GOLO13

Date Assigned:

D.O.B:

Cell Phone:

|l

07/21/2017
04/03/1975

501-472-5047

County pylaski

Type Of Investigation: Retail Beer off Premises - Replacement from Randall Carter

02963

Dancing, if requested:

Comments / Remarks :

Copies Of Assignmentand  Mayor Joe Smith & City Councll

Comment Form Mailed to:

Michaelj Davis, Chief of Police

Doc Holladay, Sheriff

Larry Jegley, Prosecuting Attorney

Assigned to Investigator:

Stockholders / Partners /LLC
Members:





o I“i ﬁﬁﬁl‘ .!l
ALCOHMOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL DIVISION RO L

COMMENTS OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS

APPLICANT'S NAME: DONNIE MILLER

TYPE OF APPLICATION: Retail Beer off Premises - Replacement from Randall Carter

BUSINESS NAME: PROTHO JUNCTION SHELL
BUSINESS ADDRESS: 2522 Jacksonville Hwy., North Little Rock, AR, 72117
DATE OF APPLICATION: 07/20/2017

NAME OF PUBLIC OFFICIAL.:

TITLE OF OFFICIAL:

OFFICIAL MAILING ADDRESS:

PHONE :

SIGNATURE OF OFFICIAL: DATE:

NAME OF AGENCY OR COURT:

Do you have any objections to the issuance of this permit?

{YesorNo}

if yes, please explain your chjections below:

To ensure your comments are available at the time this application is considered by the Director, please complete and return
this form to ABC Administration, 1515 West 7th Street, Suite 503, Little Rock, AR 72201, within fifteen (15) days of receipt. In
compliance with the Freedom of Information Act, this Comment Form will become a matter of public record. Pursuant to
ACA 3-2-103, a national fingerprint based background check will be, or has been, conducted. At ACICs request, do
not run your own criminal history check through ACIC.

Printed On: 07/21/2017 Revised 03/11/2016
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% STATE OF ARKANSAS
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL DIVISION

APPLICATION FOR RETAIL BEER PERMIT

Check One: () ON PREMISES CONSUMPTION New Application
/ Replacement {~
{LY OFF PREMISES CONSUMPFTION Permit No.

I, or we, do hereby make application to the State of Arkansas for a permit to sell beer at retail, and do hereby
submit answers to the following questions under oath for your approval:

/7/7) FhAn 7 gff%(/,ar,rd remne £ 3976

Corporate /Partnership/LLC Name

NANIED[/////v ¢ Lol ///,/A;//«

First Middle Last
HOME ADDRESS __ /Y?S flaelan  (onises AR23T J M
Street City Zip County

BUSINESS NAME /9@ tho  Duaction Shel FORMER NAME
PR(I'7

BUSINESS ADDRESS )< 0.2 /‘//Mwav K oIk LAHe e & 2w
Street ' Clty Zip County Township

Is proposed location inside or outside city limits? /ﬂ 5}‘516
Is the beer to be sold in connection with any other business? ¥C— § (A) If so, state type of business

(café, drug store, pool hall, service station@ etc.)

(B) If beeris to be sold in connection with a

motor fuel sales business give number of gasoline and/or diesel pumps at each location L/

Are you the owner of the proposed premises? Do you have the premises leased? =9

If leased, give hame and address of owner Ci)ﬂf/fc‘lm p// /134 Tihe AV‘-./L%’Q#:I@%#
Will there be dancing on the premises? ZZ o Dance Space X — A
Does anyone now hold a beer or any other permit at this location? ¥€_)_ ' If so, give namiea*and permit
number(s) /r ﬁ%/cl af / %% '7LC/ ) 7¢3 ‘ ‘f -

Has anyone, to your knowfedge heid a beer or any other permit at this location? No it So, éﬁve name

and permit number(s) Ia T

Do you or any otheripb@sé&n |ﬁﬂer&.§eaqg t"x‘glpermit hold any other type alcoholic beyerage perfit? Cdf
If held, give name, place and Bttt rtmber(s) Mccain Shel |. 0220 y fﬁfgf( Hl /{S/) el - OSES
Chystal BV Syecstop - ORT66







ELEC’T RIC DEPAHTMENT

MR

NORTH LITTLE ROCK

Main Office: 1400 W. Maryland, No. Little Rock, AR 72120
Mail Delivery: P.O. Box 159, No Little Rock, AR 72115-0159

TO: Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
FROM: Karen Scott, Chairman
DATE: August 7, 2017

SUBIJECT: ECR Adjustment Factor

The Energy Risk Management Committee met and approved the below stated calculation of the Energy
Cost Recovery Rider adjustment factor (ECR) for the bills to be rendered during the period shown.

Meeting Date Month bills rendered Amount of ECR

8/4/17 August, 2017 .0052 [positive]

Respectfully Submitted,

U Soe st

Karen Scott, Chairman
Energy Risk Management Committee

STHY) A, ! ’)/ EM

By Vi ema -Zé{‘gn SCO#’

pate &-1 17

Diase Whithoy, City Clork and Collodtor
North Li

RECEIVED by}

(501) 372-0100
An Equal Opportunity Employer
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J CRAFT, VEACH & COMPANY, PLC

% CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Members of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the City Council
City of North Little Rock, Arkansas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the City of North Little Rock Electric Department
(the “Department”), a component unit of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas, which comprise the
statements of net position as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Department as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the changes in financial position and
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

P.O. Box 13986 ® Maumelle, AR 72113 | 8410 Counts Massie Road ® North Little Rock, AR 72113 | (501) 753-0808 | Fax (501) 753-6706





Emphasis of a Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the financial statements present only the Department
and do not purport to, and do not present fairly the financial position of the City of North Little Rock as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the changes in its financial position, or where applicable, its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis (pages 3-5), budgetary comparison information (page 21), and historical pension
information (pages 22-23) be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 10, 2017, on
our consideration of the Department’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Department’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

it ke

Craft, Veach & Company, PLC
North Little Rock,.Arkansas
July 10, 2017

P.O. Box 13986 ¢ Maumelle, AR 72113 | 8410 Counts Massie Road ® North Little Rock, AR 72113 | (501) 753-0808 | Fax (501) 753-6706





CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

This section presents management’s analysis of the City of North Little Rock Electric Department’s {NLRED)
financial condition and activities for the year. This information should be read in conjunction with the
financial statements.

Overview

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to, and should be read in
conjunction with, the basic financial statements and supplementary information. The MD&A represents
management’s examination and analysis of the utility’s financial condition and performance.

The financial statements report information about the NLRED using full accrual accounting methods as
utilized by similar business activities in the private sector. The financial statements include a statement of
net position, statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, statement of cash flows, notes
to the financial statements and other supporting schedules.

The statement of net position presents the financial position of the NLRED on a full accrual historical cost
basis. This statement presents information on all of the assets and liabilities with the difference reported as
net position. Over time, increases and decreases in net position are an indicator of whether the financial
position of the NLRED is improving or deteriorating.

While the statement of net position provides information about the nature and amount of resources and
obligations at year-end, the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position presents the
results of the business activities over the course of the fiscal year and information as to how the net position
changed during the year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the cash flows.

The statement of cash flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from operational,
financing, and investing activities. This statement presents cash receipts and disbursement information only.

The notes to the financial statements and supplementary information are provided to disclose information
that is essential to a full understanding of the material data provided in the statements.

The financial statements were prepared by NLRED staff from its detailed transactions for the years ending
December 31, 2016 and 2015. The financial statements were audited and adjusted, if material, during the
independent external audit process.

Financial Analysis

The financial statements on pages 6 through 8 provide information about the financial activities of NLRED.
The following information is an analysis of the year presented.

Statement of Net Position

As of December 31, 2016, total assets were $180,155,225 and exceeded total liabilities of $59,455,392 by
$120,699,833. Of the total net position, $106,064,951 was invested in capital assets, $2,680,415 was
restricted for debt service, $2,307,080 was restricted for working capital, and $10,387,549 was unrestricted.





CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015
2016 2015
Current Assets S 42,280,274 S 56,521,033
Total Property, Plant & Equipment 137,874,951 137,188,855
Deferred Outflows of Resources 2,493,469 965,349
Current Liabilities 11,426,860 13,273,328
Noan-current Liabilities 48,028,532 59,140,855
Deferred inflows of Resources 1,753,307 2,469,813

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 106,064,951 101,448,855
Restricted for debt service 2,680,415 5,207,013
Restricted for working capital 2,307,080 10,149,208
Unrestricted net position 10,387,549 2,986,165

The current ratio is an indication of short-term liquidity and is calculated by dividing current assets by
current liabilities. A resulting number greater than one indicates current assets in excess of current needs
that can be applied in future periods. The current ratio for NLRED was 3.70 for 2016, compared 4.26 for
2015. Another ratio that is computed from this statement is the debt utilization ratio, which indicates what
percentage the total debt is to total assets. This ratio is calculated by dividing total debt by total assets. The
debt utilization ratios for the years ending December 31, 2016 and 2015 were 33% and 37%, respectively.

The following were net capital improvements, additions or replacements for 2016 (the figures are
approximate):

Murray Hydro Electric Generation Plant 5 1,584,000
Distribution System - Bayou Meto Substation 6,129,000
Distribution System - Poles, Wire, Transformers, Conductors, etc. (Bayou Meta) 3,773,000
Distribution System - Poles, Wire, Transformers, Conductors, etc. (Other Projects) 4,300,000
AMI (Advanced Meter Infrastructure - Smart Meters} 484,000
Office Furniture and Fixtures, Computers, Communication and Misc. Equipment 451,000
Transportation, Tools, and Power Equipment 1,182,000
CWIP - Net of Transfers to Property, Plant & Equipment (9,134,000}
Total Capital Improvements ) 8,769,000

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the year-ending December 31, 2016, operating revenues were 582,798,486 and operating expenses
were $68,003,396. Non-operating revenues and (expenses) totaled $(1,146,336) which consisted of non-
operating revenues of $1,305,259, and non-operating expenses of $2,451,595. Transfers to the City were
$12,000,000. The result was an increase in net position in the amount of $1,648,754.





CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015
2016 2015
Operating Revenues 5 82,798,486 3 89,147,960
Operating Expenses 68,003,396 66,580,268
Non-operating and Federal Contract Revenues 1,305,259 4,525,146
Non-operating Expenses 2,451,595 3,301,571
Transfers to the City 12,000,000 12,000,000
increase {Decrease) in Net Position S 1,648,754 ) 11,791,267

The NLRED operating revenues for 2016 decreased $6,349,474 from 2015. The main reason for the decrease
was the reduction in customer billings due to a negative Energy Cost Recovery adjustment factor (ECR} in
2016 as compared to the ECR in 2015. The majority of NLRED operating revenue is derived from residential
and commercial customers. In 2016, the NLRED had an average of 33,413 residential customers, 4,933
commercial customers, and 141 large users.

Operating expenses, not including depreciation expense, increased 1% in 2016. Depreciation expense
increased 11% in 2016.

Non-operating revenues decreased 71% in 2016 mainly due to a $2,880,478 reduction of Federal Contract
Revenue by the U.S. Corp of Engineers for the Bayou Meto Pump Station project. The total Award was
59,712,928, The Pump Station was completed in 2015.

Non-operating expenses decreased 26% in 2016 due to $830,000 reduction in Bond interest expense and
566,000 reduction in Loss on disposal of equipment (replacement of non-fully depreciated old meters by
new Smart Meters).

Pension Plan Disclosure

As per the Government Accounting Standards Board, Statements No. 67 and No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions, provides guidance for the financial reports of most pension plans for state
and local governments that provide their employees with pension benefits. Please see Note 6 in the
accompanying audit notes to the financial statements.

Budget-to-Actual Comparison

The budget is prepared internally by NLRED based on the prior year's activity. The previous year amounts
are adjusted to reflect anticipated activity for the current year. As with any budget, there are differences
between anticipated and actual results.

Actual operating revenues were [ess than budgeted by approximately $9,700,000. Operating expenses, not
including depreciation, were approximately 5781,000 less than the amount budgeted. The change in Net

Position was approximately 59,400,000 less than the amount budgeted.

See “Budgetary Comparison Schedule” on page 21 of the Audit.





CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Hydro maintenance fund
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $474,245

and $475,088, for 2016 and 2015, respectively

Other receivables
Unbilled revenue
Materials and supplies
Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Property, Plant, and Equipment:
Property, plant, and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total Property, Plant, and Equipment

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount from refunding of bonds
Deferred amounts related to pensions

Total Deferred Quiflows of Resources

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Current Habilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Bonds payable - current portion
Accrued interest payable
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Accrued pension liability

Bonds payable, net of current portion
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO PENSIONS
NET PQOSITION

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for debt service

Restricted for working capital

Unrestricted net position

TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LIABILETIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND TOTAL NET POSITION

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

2016 2015
$ 20,936,778 S 25,968,081
4,000,000 4,000,000
4,987,495 15,356,224
3,328,933 3,385,111
162,064 163,914
4,079,000 4,125,000
2,805,404 2,195,111
1,980,600 1,327,592
47,380,274 56,521,033
281,952,602 273,183,053
(144,077,651 {135,994,198)
137,874,951 137,188,855
180,155,225 193,709,888
708,663 -
1,784,806 965,349
3,493,469 965,349
182,648,694 194,675,237
4,293,034 4,639,561
2,263,010 2,007,267
4,295,000 5,800,000
575,816 826,500
11,426,860 13,773,328
6,668,532 4,825,855
41,360,000 54,315,000
78,008,532 55,140,855
59,455,392 72,414,183
1,753,307 2,469,813
106,064,951 101,448,855
2,680,415 5,207,013
2,307,080 10,149,208
10,387,549 2,986,165
121,439,995 119,791,241

$ 182,648,694

S 194,675,237






CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

2016 2015

Operating revenues:
Sale of electricity, net of uncollectible accounts S 82,798,486 3 89,147,960

Operating expenses:

Purchased electricity 44,277,167 43,695,782
Depreciation 8,548,592 7,731,661
Distribution system maintenance 3,165,791 3,011,877
Other distribution expenses 3,050,781 3,069,782
Customer records and collection expense 2,435,287 2,556,576
General and administrative 1,238,391 1,379,298
Franchise tax 1,026,244 1,067,942
Operating expenses 1,065,823 1,006,111
Generation plant maintenance 1,135,414 1,103,430
General plant maintenance 549,838 576,428
Other generation plant expenses 580,700 412,476
Conservation 340,930 412,391
Property and lability insurance 322,477 347,141
Regulatory fees 261,961 209,373
Total operating expenses 68,003,396 66,580,268
Operating income 14,795,080 22,567,692

Nonoperating revenues {expenses);

Interest and investment income 50,429 206,194
interest expense (1,962,159) (2,792,285}
Pension expense {306,714) {260,327)
Trustee fees {10,481) {10,320)
Penalty income 750,455 943,156
Miscellaneous income 424,375 495,318
Federal contract revenue - 2,880,478
Loss on disposal of equipment {172,241) {238,639)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (1,146,336) 1,223,575
Income hefore transfers out 13,648,754 23,791,267
Transfers out 12,000,000 12,000,000
increase {decrease) in net position 1,648,754 11,791,267

Cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle - GASB 68 - {6,069,992)

:
Net position, beginning of year ' 119,791,241 114,068,966
Net position, end of year S 121,439,995 S 119,791,241

See geccompanying notes to the financiol statements. 7






CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to vendors
Payments for purchase of electricity
Payments for taxes
Payments to employees
Net cash flows provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers to other departments
Penalty income
Net cash flows provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Repayment of long-term debt and bonds payable
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Interest paid
Federal contract receipts
Other receipts
Net cash flows provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments
Net cash flows provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase {decrease} in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents - end of the year

Reconciliation of cperating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense

{Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable
Other receivables
Unbilled revenues
Prepaid expenses
fnveniory

tncrease {decrease} in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Net cash provided by operating activities

Supplemental disclosure of noncash transactions investing
and financing activities:

Amortization deferred on bond refunding, included in interest expense

See accompanying nates to the financial statements.

2016 2015
$ 82,901,507 S 89,730,795
(9,128,752) (7,216,112}
(44,277,167) (43,695,782)
(947,602) {1,144,579)
(5,875,921} {5,475,050)
22,672,065 32,199,272
{12,000,000) (12,000,000}
790,455 943,156
{11,209,545) (11,056,844}
{14,460,000) (5,675,000}
(9,985,369) (13,632,209}
(2,931,987) (2,228,416}
. 2,880,478
424,375 495,317
{26,952,981) (18,159,830
90,429 206,194
90,429 206,194
(15,400,032 3,188,792
45,324,305 42,135,513

§ 29.924,273

S 45,324,305

$ 14,795,090 $ 22,567,692
9,127,032 8,225,810
56,178 322,056
1,850 {110,748)
46,000 248,000
{653,008) (611,750)
(610,293) 178,718
(346,527) 1,028,996
255,743 610,825

§ 22672,065 5 32,459,599
5 28,583 S 626,839
8






CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Operations and Reporting Entity

The City of North Little Rock Electric Department (the “Department”) generates and provides electrical
power to residents and businesses of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas {the “City”}, and other
communities in Pulaski County, Arkansas. The Department extends credit to customers on an unsecured
basis. The financial statements present only the Department, an enterprise fund, and are not intended to
present the financial position of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas.

The Department has adopted Government Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 62,
Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and
AICPA  Pronouncements, which incorporates Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB”)
pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989,
unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB
prevails.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Department have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to governmental units. As a component unit
of the City of North Little Rock, the Department has adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments. GASB
Statement No. 34 established standards for external financial reporting for all state and local governmental
entities, which includes a statement of net pesition, a statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position, and a statement of cash flows. It requires the classification of net position into three components
- restricted; net investment in capital assets; and unrestricted.

Restricted — consists of constraints placed on net position imposed by creditors {such as through
debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Net investment in capital assets — consists of capital assets, including restricted capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes,
or other borrowing that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets.

Unrestricted — consists of net position that does not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net
investment in capital assets”,

The Department’s policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense or outlay is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available.

The Department recoghizes revenue and expenses using the accrual method of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. The Department distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection
with the principal ongoing operations of the Department. Operating expense for the proprietary funds
include the cost of personnel, supplies, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.





CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported
revenues and expenses. Actual results could vary from the estimates that were assumed in preparing the
financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Department considers certificates of deposits and all highly
liquid cash investments with original maturities of less than three months to be cash equivalents.

Hydro Maintenance Fund

On November 23, 2015, the City Council approved Resolution No. 8886, which establishes a fund dedicated
to manage expenses associated with maintenance of the Murray Hydroelectric Plant without incurring debt
and anticipates that the overhaul of Unit 1 will occur within the next two fiscal cycles,

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount billed to customers. The Department utilizes the allowance
method of accounting for uncollectible accounts receivable, The Department reviews their customer
accounts on a monthly basis and records a reserve for specific amounts that management determines may
not be collected, which generally wili include accounts that are more than 90 days past due. In addition, the
Department has established a general reserve for potential uncollectible accounts based on historical bad
debts. Amounts are written off at the point when collection attempts have been exhausted, which is usually
nine months after the account is past due. Management uses significant judgment in estimating
uncollectible amounts. In estimating uncollectible amounts, management believes the Department’s
processes effectively address its exposure to doubtful accounts, changes in economic, industry, or specific
customer conditions may require adjustment to the allowance recorded by the Department. Accounts
receivable are net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of 5474,245 and $475,088 at both December 31,
2016 and 2015, respectively.

Debt Issuance Expenses
Debt issuance expenses are recorded as expenses in the year that they are incurred.

Inventory
Inventory consists of materials and supplies valued at the lower of cost or market, using the average cost

method.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost unless otherwise noted. Depreciation is provided by the
straighi-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets ranging from five to fifty years.
The cost of additions to property, plant and equipment include contractual work, direct labor, materiails and
allocable overhead. Costs of repairs and maintenance that do not improve or extend the assets lives are
charged to expense as incurred.

Restricted Assets
The Department’s bond agreements restrict certain assets for the payment of debt service, capital
improvements, and repairs and maintenance.

10





CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Compensated Absences

The Department policies permit most employees to accumulate vacation and sick leave benefits that may be
realized as paid time off, or in limited circumstances, as a cash payment. The Department has accrued a
liability for vacation and sick leave pay, which has been earned but not taken by employees.

Transfers to General Fund

The Department transfers funds to the General Fund of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas based on
amounts directed and authorized by the City Council in the annual budget. These transfers are accounted
for as operating transfers. The amounts of these transfers of $12,000,000 for each of the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Date of Management’s Review
Management has evaluated subsequent events through July 10, 2017, that date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2: DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS

The Department complies with all state and local laws and regulations as well as the provisions of certain
contracts requiring the use of separate funds. The required funds used by the Department inciude the
following:

Operation and Maintenance Fund

The Operating and Maintenance Fund is used to pay the reasonable and necessary monthly expenses of
operation, and repair and maintenance of the electric system. The fund is maintained by required monthly
transfers from the Revenue Fund.

Revenue Bond Fund

On the next to last business day of each month, there shall be paid to this fund a sum equal to one-sixth of
the next installment of interest, one-twelfth of the next instaliment of principal, and the estimated fees for
the trustee for the current month until such time as there is accumulated in the fund an amount egual to
the maximum annual debt service on all bonds outstanding.

Surplus Fund

Any surplus in the Revenue Fund after making all disbursements and making all required deposits described
above including the correction of any deficiencies may be used for any lawful municipal purpose including
early redemption of outstanding bonds or for the construction of extensions, betterments, and
improvements to the electric system.

NOTE 3: DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS, AND INVESTMENT INCOME

nvestment return includes dividend, interest, and other investment income, realized and unrealized gains
and losses on investments carried at fair value, and realized gains and losses on other investments.
Investment return is included in unrestricted net position.

Interest rate risk — The Department has no formal policy to limit its exposure to fair value losses due to rising
interest rates.

11





CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 3: DEPOS!ITS, INVESTMENTS, AND INVESTMENT INCOME {Continued}

Credit risk - Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. Provisions of debt agreements require the investments by the Department be rated no less
than Aa by Moody’s Investors Service and AA by Standard and Poor’s Investor Service. There were no such
investments at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Custodial credit risk — For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the
counterparty, the Department will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. There were no such investments at December 31, 2016 and
2015.

Concentration of credit risk — The Department places no limit on the amount that may be invested in any
one issuer. The Department had amounts deposited in common trust and money market funds totaling
52,680,415 and $5,207,013 which are included in cash, hydro maintenance fund and restricted cash at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Total investment return for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 is comprised of the following:

2016 2015
interest and investment income 90,429 206,194
Net unrealized gains (losses) reported at fair value - -
90,429 206,194

NOTE 4: PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant, and equipment consisted of the following at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively:

2015 Additions Transfers Disposals 2016
Land $ 2,032,960 S - S - S - S 2,032,960
Plant and Equipment 258,365,256 1,251,176 17,867,890 (1,215,820} 276,268,502
Construction in Process 12,784,837 8,734,193 {17,867,890) - 3,651,140
273,183,053 9,985,369 - {1,215,820) 281,952,602
Less: Accumilated
Depreciation {135,994,198) {9,127,032) - 1,043,579 (144,077,651)
S 137,188,855 § 858,337 S - S (172,241} S 137,874,951
2014 Additions Transfers Disposals 2015
Land $ 2,032,960 § - $ - 3 - $ 2,032,960
Plant and Equipment 240,714,851 953,164 17,683,882 (986,641) 258,365,256
Construction in Process 17,789,674 12,679,045 {17,683,882) - 12,784,837
260,537,485 13,632,209 - (986,641} 273,183,053
Less: Accumulated
Depreciation (128,516,390} {8,225,810) . 748,002 {135,994,198)
$ 132,024,095 § 5406399 S - 5 (238,639) S 137,188,855

12





CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 4: PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The Department allocates a portion of total depreciation expense across to various operating expense
accounts. The amount of depreciation expense that was allocated as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 was
$578,440 and $494,149, respectively,

NOTE 5: LONG-TERM DEBT

On May 1, 2011, the Department issued $16,000,000 revenue honds. The interest rate on the Series 2011
Revenue bonds is 5.1%. Annual sinking fund payments sufficient to redeem principal plus interest at rates
ranging from 2.3% to 5.1% are required; redeemable at the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas” option, as a
whole or in part, at 100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest at any date on 45 days’ notice. On
November 1, 2016 the Department placed the remaining bond proceeds from the Series 2011 bonds into an
escrow account. This move allows for the Department to save money by choosing advance refunding of the
bonds. An advance refunding takes advantage of current market conditions by issuing bonds now. The bond
proceeds will remain in the escrow account until they can be optionally redeemed on May 1, 2018.

On June 1, 2012, the Department issued bonds totaling $55,780,000. The interest rates on the Series 2012A,
2012B, and 2012C Revenue bonds range between 3.0% and 5.0%. Annual sinking fund payments sufficient
to redeem principal plus interest at rates ranging from 2.6% to 5.0% are required; redeemable at the City of
North Little Rock, Arkansas’ option, as a whole or in part, at 100% of the principal amount plus accrued
interest at any date on 30 days’ notice. The 2012A and 2012B bonds were issued for the refunding of the
1992, 1997 and 2009 Series bonds and to provide $7,000,000 for capital improvements. The 2012C honds
were issued to finance working capital of $10,185,000 for the Department. On August 1, 2016 the
Department redeemed the 2012C bonds with excess reserves in order to reduce annual debt payments of
approximately $1,480,000.

On November 1, 2016, the Department issued a Series 2016 refunding revenue bond totaling $13,850,000.
Principal on the Bond shall be paid annually, on a graduated basis, on May 1 of each year, commencing May
1, 2017 with the final payment due May 1, 2031. The weighted average maturity of the Bond shall not
exceed 8.5 years. The Bond shall bear interest at a fixed rate per annum for 96 months equivalent to 2.47%
and at a fixed rate per annum equivalent to 2.57% for the remaining 78 months. Interest will be payable
semiannually on May 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing May 1, 2017. The bond proceeds of the
Series 2016 bond will be invested until the optional redemption date of the Series 2011 honds.

As a result of this refunding, $3,313,567 of deferred bond issuance costs was recognized and amortized over
the remaining life of the old bonds. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, $708,663 and 50, respectively,
remained in deferred bond costs and is reported as a deferred outflow of resources.

The following is a summary of the bonds payable activity for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively:

2015 Additions Retirements 2016
$ 60,115,000 $ 13,550,000 S (28,010,000) $ 45,655,000

2014 Additions Retirements 2015
5 65,790,000 S - s (5,675,000) S 60,115,000

13






CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 5: LONG-TERM DEBT {Continued}

Aggregate payments of the bonds outstanding are as follows for the years ending December 31:

Principak:
2017
2018
2018
2020
2021

2022-2026
2027-2031

Thereafter

Interest:
2017

2018

2019

2020

2021
2022-2026
2027-2031
Thereafter

Series 2012

Series 2016 Total
S 4,000,000 S 295,000 S 4,295,000
4,095,000 815,000 4,910,000
4,195,000 840,000 5,035,000
4,305,000 855,000 5,160,000
4,445,000 880,000 5,325,000
10,770,000 4,755,000 15,525,000
- 5,405,000 5,405,000
S 31,810,000 S 13,845,000 S 45,655,000
Series 2012 Series 2016 Total
5 1,037,009 S 342,997 S 1,380,006
948,016 329,044 1,277,060
845,293 308,319 1,153,612
733,609 287,909 1,021,518
600,386 265,366 865,752
944,912 993,294 1,938,206
- 359,385 359,385
S 5,109,225 S 2,886,314 5 7,995,535

The City of North Little Rock, Arkansas will maintain rates sufficient to produce net revenues equal to at
least 125% of the annual debt service. Net revenues are defined as all revenues derived from operations of
the electric system, including profits from all funds maintained under bond indenture except the project
fund, less extraordinary income items and after reduction for normal operating expenses (exclusive of
depreciation and noncash items and interest expense). For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015,
the Department was in compliance with this covenant.

All revenues derived from the operation of the Department shall be deposited in the Revenue Bond Fund.
Revenues deposited shall be expended into the following funds in the following order of priorities:
Operation and Maintenance Fund, Revenue Bond Fund, and Surplus Fund.
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 6: NON-UNIFORMED EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN

The Department implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB) Statement No. 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and GASB
Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date — an
amendment to GASB 68. The provisions of these statements were effective for financial statements for fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2014. These statements establish standards for measuring and recognizing
liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures.

Plan Description

All full-time employees of the Department are participants of “The Retirement System of the City of North
Little Rock” (the “Non-uniformed Plan”) defined benefit plan. The provisions of the Non-uniformed Plan call
for employee contributions of 4% of gross earnings to be paid through payroll withholdings. Each month,
the Department contributes 6% of each employee’s monthly compensation.

The Non-uniformed Plan is a single-employer, defined benefit plan established under Arkansas state law.
The Non-uniformed Plan assets are administered by an independent fiduciary agent, but governed by a
Board of Trustees. The Non-uniformed Plan provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to all
regular, full time, non-uniformed employees of the Department. The amount of benefits to be paid to any
participant depends solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings.

Benefits Provided

The Non-uniformed Plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members. Retirement
benefits are determined as a percentage of the member’s Final Average Earnings.

Members are eligible to retire with a full benefit under the following conditions:
« Atage65
s Arage 62 with 5 years of service

Members may retire with a reduced benefit at age 55 with at least 10 years of service.
Members are eligible for disability benefits at age 50 with 10 years of service.

Death benefits are paid to a surviving spouse based upon age and length of service.

Contributions

For the Non-uniformed Plan as a whole, it is the actuary’s opinion that the city and member contributions of
10% as required by the Non-uniformed Plan are not expected to be sufficient to finance the cost of benefits
earned by members during the year. The recommended contribution level for the 2017 Plan Year for the
City as a whole is 19.45%. For 2016, the Department’s contributions to the Plan were $334,398,

Pension Liabifities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows / Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

The Plan’s collective net pension liability of $26,254,064 was measured as of December 31, 2016, and the
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as
of January 1, 2017. Each component unit’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the
component unit’s share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the total contributions of all
participating component units.
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK NOTES FO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 21, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 6: NON-UNIFORMED EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

At December 31, 2016, the Department’s proportion was 25.4% and the Department recorded a liability of
$6,668,532 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Department recognized pension expense of §711,332. At
December 31, 2016, the Department reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Net difference between projected and actual investment
earnings on pension plan investments S - S 127,633
Changes of actuarial assumptions 923,279 {1,823,945)
Changes in proportion - (56,995)

Net difference between projected and actual earnings
onpension plan investments 861,527 -

$ 1,784,806 S  (1,753,307)

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as foflows:

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Thereafter

$ 132,952 § 132,952 $ 132,952 $  (103,726) S  (141,599) & -
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 6: NON-UNIFORMED EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability In the January 1, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amaortization Method Level of Percent of Pay
Remaining Amortization Period 15 Years

Asset Valuation Method Market Value

Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment Rate of Return 6.5%

Salary Increases 4.0% Annually
Mortality Table Based on the Retirement Plans 2014 Mortality Tabie
Average Service Life of All Members 11.26 years

Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA)

The plan does not provide cost of living adjustments {COLA), and none are anticipated or included in these
calculations,

Long-Term Expected Return on Plan Assets

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return. The target allocation of the
plan and the long-term expected real rates of return are summarized in the table below:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Return
Fixed Income 40% 2.25%
Domestic Equity 40% 4.75%
Foreign Equity 12% 6.25%
Alternatives 4% 4.50%
Cash 4% 0.25%
Total 100%

Expected Inflation 2.50%
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK NCTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 6: NON-UNIFORMED EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

Single Discount Rate

A single discount rate of 6.50% was used to measure the total pension liability. This single discount rate was
based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 6.50%. The projection of cash flows,
based on the assumptions made, found that the pension plan’s net position was not available to make all
projected future henefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the calculated single discount rate
calculated was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Department’s Proportionate Share of the Net Posftion Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate:

The following presents the Department’s proportionate share of the net pension liahility calculated using
the discount rate of 6.50%, as well as what the Department’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.50%) or one
percentage point higher {7.50%) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(5.50%) {6.50%) (7.50%)
The Department's proportionate share
of the net pension liability 3 9,478,036 S 6,668,532 S 4,427,773

The Funding Policy of the City of North Little Rock (City} was to contribute the 6% of payroll as that is
defined in the plan document. During the October 2016 City Council meeting, the City agreed to increase the
contribution rate to 9% with an annual review in the future. There will be a plan amendment to make this
change in contribution rate effective as of January 1, 2017 and it will be included in the 2017 budget of the
City.

NOTE 7: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Utilitles Accounting Department of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas, under the direction of the
Department of Finance of the City, performs customer billing, collection services and accounts receivable
recordkeeping for the Department. The Utilities Accounting Department charges the Department for this
service based on the number of bills rendered. Charges for services totaled approximately $2,300,000 each
year for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Service deposits for Department customers are collected and maintained by the Utilities Accounting
Department. Interest earnings on deposit funds invested are recorded by the Department and reflected in
these financial statements.

Charges by the Department to the North Little Rock Street Department for the electricity usage amounted to
approximately $120,000 for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE &: LITIGATION

In the normal course of business, the Department is, from time to time, subject to aliegations that may or do
resylt in litigation. The Department evaluates such allegations by conducting investigations to determine
the validity of each potential claim. Based upon the advice of legal counsel, management records an
astimate of the amount of ultimate expected loss, if any. Based on management’s evaluation, no amounts
were accrued for expected losses as of December 31, 2016 and 2015. Events could occur that would cause
the estimate of the ultimate loss to differ materially in the near term.

NOTE 9: OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

Department employees participate in another post-employment benefit plan {the “OPEB Plan”} sponsored
by the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas. GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions {“GASB 45”) requires that employers providing
post-employment benefits other than pensions record and disclose annual other post-employment benefit
{"OPEB”) cost and a net OPEB obligation in their financial statements and disclose other information about
their OPEB plans, including the unfunded actuarial liability (“UAAL").

The OPEB Plan allows employees to continue health insurance coverage beyond retirement. Although
retirees are required to pay 100% of the group premium for continued coverage, the higher the cost of
covering retirees results in a subsidy to those retirees, which is reflected in the recorded OPEB cost.

Based on an actuarial valuation performed as of January 1, 2017, the Department recorded OPEB cost of
$20,286 for 2016; $16,105 for 2015; and $38,343 for 2014. The net OPEB obligation was $267,305,
$247,019, and $230,914 as of December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014,
respectively. The Department’s share of the UAAL, which is not recorded in the financial statements, was
$238,620 as of the actuarial date of January 1, 2017 and $253,999 as of the actuarial date of January 1,
2015. The UAAL will be included in annual OPEB cost over an amortization period of 30 years. The OPEB
obligation and UAAL were computed using a discount rate of 5.5% and healthcare cost inflation rate of 5%.
Additional OPEB Plan disclosures, including required supplementary information, required by GASB 45 may
be found in the 2016 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas.

The projection of future benefit payment for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the ARC of the employer are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the
future.
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 10: COMMITMENTS

As described befow, the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas {“the City”) has entered into both long-term and
short-term commitments to acquire wholesale electricity for resale to customers by the Department.

The City constructed Murray Hydro in 1989. The City has an agreement with Entergy Arkansas, Inc.
{“Entergy”} to interconnect Murray Hydro with Entergy’s transmission facilities and the City’s distribution
facilities such that energy generated at Murray can be delivered to customers. The agreement continues as
long as the City is authorized to operate the Plant, unless terminated earlier by either party on not less than
60 months advance written notice. Rates are determined based upon agreed-upon formulas, with billings to
be made on a monthly hasis.

In 2007, the City entered into a power purchase agreement with the Missouri Joint Municipal Electric Utility
Commission ("MIMEUC”). Under the agreement, the City is committed to acquire approximately 60
megawatts of generating capacity from PPES, which was constructed near Osceola, Arkansas and began
power generation in 2010. The agreement runs through December 31, 2050, but may end prior to that date
if the plant is retired, if certain termination provisions apply, or if otherwise agreed to by the parties. Under
the agreement, the City will pay its proportionate share of the fixed and variable costs of operating the plant
and its share of MIMEUC's administrative and other costs associated with the contract.

During 2012, the City established an adjustable Energy Cost Recovery Rider {(“ECR”) as a component of its
electric rate structure. The ECR is designed to generate increases or decreases in billings to customers
depending on increases or decreases in the cost purchasing and providing power to its customers.

In December 2013, the City became a part of the Midcontinent Independent System Operator, inc. {(“MISC")
market which provided greater flexibility in the procurement of wholesale electricity, and related services.
On October 26, 2015, the City adopted a Risk Management Policy to govern market participation in MISO.
On November 23, 2015, the City entered into a resource management agreement with TEA to conduct
bilateral and market transactions on behalf of the City. In 2016, the City entered into contracts through TEA
for the purchase of 466.5 GWh of energy to be delivered through 2021 for $13.9M, resulting in a unit cost of
$29.89/MWh. Although the City’s contract with TEA may be terminated on 180 days’ notice, all contracts
entered by TEA on behalf of the City will remain effective. Quarterly and annual risk management
compliance reports are submitted to City Council and are available for public inspection that reflects all
transactions of the previous period.

On May 8, 2017, the City entered into an agreement with L'Oreal to interconnect 1’Oreal’s 1200kw solar
facility with the City’s distribution system. Through the agreement, the City purchases all energy generated
at the City's avoided cost of power, currently calfculated at $47.71/MWh. L'Oreal is estimated to produce
1997 MWh of electricity annually resulting in annual City purchases of approximately $95,000. The
agreement terminates 25 years after execution.

NOTE 11: FEDERAL CONTRACT REVENUE
In 2015, the Department provided services to the Department of the Army to upgrade an electric substation

for $9,712,928. The Department earned and recorded as revenue $2,880,478 for the year ending December
31, 2015. The project was completed in 2015 and no revenue was received for the project in 2016.
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
Originaf and 2016 Actual Over
Final Budget Actual {Under) Budget

Operating revenues:
Sale of electricity, net of uncollectible accounts S 92,500,000 s 82,798,486 S (9,701,514)

Operating expenses:

Purchased electricity 44,760,000 44,277,167 (482,833)
Depreciation 8,704,859 8,548,592 {156,267)
Distribution system maintenance 3,010,000 3,165,791 155,791
Other distribution expenses 3,144,000 3,050,781 {90,219)
Customer records and collection expense 2,600,000 2,435,287 (164,713}
General and administrative 1,360,000 1,238,391 (121,609)
Franchise tax 1,070,000 1,026,244 (43,756)
Operating expenses 1,120,000 1,065,823 (54,177}
Generation plant maintenance 1,100,000 1,139,414 39,414
General plant maintenance 576,000 549,838 {26,162)
Other generation plant expenses 524,000 580,700 56,700
Conservation 305,000 340,930 35,930
Property and liability insurance 420,000 322,477 (97,523}
Regulatory fees 250,000 261,961 11,961
Total operating expenses 68,940,859 68,003,396 (937,463)
Operating income 23,559,141 14,795,090 (8,764,051}

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

interest income 200,000 90,429 {109,571}

Interest expense {1,972,641) (1,962,159} 10,482

Other income {expenses) 1,237,000 725,394 (511,606}
Total nonoperating revenues {(expenses) {535,641} (1,146,336) (610,695)
Income before transfers out 23,023,500 13,648,754 {9,374,746)
Transfers out 12,000,000 12,000,000 -
Increase [decrease) in net position 11,023,500 1,648,754 (9,374,746}
Net position, beginning of year 119,791,241 119,791,241 -
Net position, end of year S 130,814,741 S 121,439,995 S {9,374,746)

See independent auditor's report. 21





CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT

SCHEDULE OF THE DEPARTVIENT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE

OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

LAST 10 YEARS*
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

Department's proportion of the net pension liability
Department's proportionate share of the net pension liability
Department's covered-employee payrall

Department's proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll

Plan Fiduciary net position as a percentage of

the total pension Hability

*Information for years prior to 2015 is not available.

See independent auditor's report.

2016 2015
25.4% 25.9%
S 6,668,532 S 4,825,855
$ 5,583,222 S 5,076,918
119.44% 95.05%
62.24% 69.11%
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

LAST 10 YEARS*

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

Actuarially determined contribution

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution
Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered-employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

*Information for years prior to 2014 is not available.

See independent auditor’s report.

2016 2015 2014
S 743,127 S 574707 0§ 562,954
(334,398) {304,615) {309,917)
408,729 270,092 253,037
S 5583222 S 5076918 5 5,169,458
6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
23






CRAFT, VEACH & COMPANY, PLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Members of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council
City of North Little Rock, Arkansas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the City of North Little Rock
Electric Department (the “Department”), a component unit of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas, as of
and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, and have issued our report thereon dated July 10,
2017.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Department’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Department’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Department’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Department’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Department’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit perfermed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Craft, Veach & Company, PLC
North Little Rock, Arkansas
July 10, 2017
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2016

Findings Required to be Reported by Government Auditing Standards:

Reference
Number Finding

None,

Prior year findings required to be reported by Government Auditing Standards:

Reference
Number Finding Status

None.
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A FEMA GRANT FOR
$363,637.00 UNDER THE FY 2016 ASSISTANCE TO
FIREFIGHTERS GRANT PROGRAM FOR THE PURCHASE OF
A RESCUE VEHICLE FOR THE NORTH LITTLE ROCK FIRE
DEPARTMENT; APPROPRIATING THE CITY’S LOCAL
SHARE FROM ACT 833 FUNDS; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the North Little Rock Fire Department (“NLRFD”) needs to purchase
a rescue vehicle (see NLRFD grant application narrative attached hereto as Exhibit “A”);
and

WHEREAS, the application of the NLRFD to the Federal Emergency Management
Agency (“FEMA”) and the Department of Homeland Security (“DHS”) under the FY 2016
Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program was approved for the purchase of a rescue vehicle
(see letter from FEMA attached hereto as Exhibit “B”); and

WHEREAS, the award pursuant to FEMA Grant No. EMW-2016-FV-00626 is
$363,637.00 for the Federal share, with the local match being $36,363.00 (see Summary
Award Memo attached hereto as Exhibit “C”); and

WHEREAS, there is a sufficient amount available in Act 833 Funds to cover the
local shate.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That FEMA and DHS Grant No. EMW-2016-FV-00626, in the
amount of Three Hundred Sixty-three Thousand Six Hundred Thirty-seven & 00/100
Dollars ($363,637.00), for purchase of a rescue vehicle as described herein, is hereby
accepted.

SECTION 2: That the sum of Thirty-six Thousand Three Hundred Sixty-three &
00/100 Dollars ($36,363.00), representing the City’s local share, is hereby appropriated
from Act 833 Funds.

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after iis
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith
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SPONSOR: ATTEST:

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
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C. Jasor Carter, City Attorney
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The North Little Rock Fire Department is seeking funding to acquire a replacement heavy rescue truck,
and to include equipment required per NFPA standards. This truck will be designed and fitted with:

Cascade/air filling station
No less than 30 kWh generator
360 degree scene lighting

This vehicte will be built to the most current edition of NFPA standards. Being able to respond to
calls for assistance from our citizens as well as neighboring departments is crucial for any fire
department. As part of our department’s ongoing strategic planning, a study was recently conducted
using an outside consulting firm, as well as in-house incident reporting software, we developed a needs
and risk assessment. It was determined at that time that additional specialized and tactical rescue
coverage was essential. Our operational planning encompasses both near and long term preparedness
strategies. Of particular importance is the safeguarding of our citizens, firefighters, and the critical
infrastructure within our operational area. Additionally, State and Federal initiatives, goals, and
objectives play a critical role in our strategic planning. We considered NIMS, the National Preparedness
Goal, our risk based priorities, national capabilities, and improving our'interoperability in our decision to
pursue funding for this vehicle.

Our current operational Rescue apparatuses have an average age of 21 years old, with the
oldest unit being 26 years old. This vehicle is a repurposed commercial box-type van with seating for 2
personnel. The restraints for the protections of the fire fighter are lap type seatbelt, and do meet with
the current NFPA standards. if awarded funding, this apparatus will be removed from emergency
service. Also to be noted is the maintenance costs incurred for the last four years. In years 2013 and
2014 the North Little Rock Fire Department spent $274,379.75, combined, for non-routine repairs to our
aging fleet.

“A"






" HAZ MAT -1 at Fire Station 2 (E. Broadway) will
be taken out of emergency service (per the grant). And be replaced with the Current Rescue-1 from
Central Station.

This Rescue truck (currently Rescue-1) will replace HAZ
MAT-1. The replacement for this Rescue has already been ordered and funds appropriated from FY16
budget.





Rescue 5, at the Park Hill station, will be replaced
with a new truck using the AFG grant funding within this legislation. The current truck will go into our
reserve fleet as Standby Rescue 1.
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Mr. Billy Jones

North Little Rock Fire Department

300 N. Main Street

North Little Rock, Arkansas 72114-5326

Re: Award No.EMW-2016-FV-00626
Dear Mr. Jones:

Congratulations, on behalf of the Department of Homeland Security, your application for financial assistance
submitted under the Fiscal Year (FY) 2016 Assistance to Firefighters Grant has been approved in the amount
of $363,637.00. As a condition of this award, you are required to contribute a cost match in the amount of
$36,363.00 of non-Federal funds, or 10 percent of the Federal contribution of $363,637.00.

Before you request and receive any of the Federal funds awarded to you, you must establish
acceptance of the award through the Assistance to Firefighters Grant Programs’ e-grant system. By
accepting this award, you acknowledge that the terms of the following documents are incorporated into the
terms of your award:

«  Summary Award Memo

« Agreement Articles (attached to this Award Letter)

+ Obligating Document (attached to this Award Letter)

«  FY 2016 Assistance to Firefighters Grant Notice of Funding Opportunity.

Please make sure you read, understand, and maintain a copy of these documents in your official file for this
award.

Prior to requesting Federal funds, all recipients are required to register in the System for Award
Management (SAM.gov). As the recipient, you must register and maintain current information in SAM.gov
until you submit the final financial report required under this award or receive the final payment, whichever is
later. This requires that the recipient review and update the information annually after the initial registration,
and more frequently for changes in your information. There is no charge to register in SAM.gov. Your
registration must be completed on-line at https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/. It is your entity's
responsibility to have a valid DUNS number at the time of registration.

In order to establish acceptance of the award and its terms, please follow these instructions:

Step 1: Please go to https:/portal.fema.gov to accept or decline your award. This will take you to the
Assistance to Firefighters eGrants system. Enter your User Name and Password as requested on the login
screen. Your User Name and Password are the same as those used to complete the application on-line.

Once you are in the system, the Status page will be the first screen you see. On the right side of the Status
screen, you will see a column entitled Action. In this column, please select the View Award Package from the
drop down menu. Click Go to view your award package and indicate your acceptance or declination of award.
PLEASE NOTE: your period of performance has begun. If you wish to accept your grant, you should do so
immediately. When you have finished, we recommend printing your award package for your records.

Step 2: If you accept your award, you will see a link on the left side of the screen that says "Update 1199A" in

the Action column. Click this link. This link will take you to the SF-1199A, Direct Deposit Sign-up Form. Please
complete the SF-1199A on-line if you have not done so already. When you have finished, you must submit
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the form electronically. Then, using the Print 1199A Button, print a copy and take it to your bank to have the
bottom portion completed. Make sure your application number is on the form. After your bank has filled out
their portion of the form, you must fax a copy of the form to FEMA's SF-1199 Processing Staff at 540-504-
2883. You should keep the original form in your grant files. After the faxed version of your SF 1199A has been
reviewed you will receive an email indicating the form is approved. Once approved you will be able to request
payments online. If you have any questions or concerns regarding your 1199A, or the process to request your
funds, please call (866) 274-0960.

Sincerely,

%}c&ng&é Wb

Bridget Bean
Acting Assistant Administrator for Grant Programs
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EXHIBIT
Summary Award Memo -,c er

SUMMARY OF ASSISTANCE ACTION
ASSISTANCE TO FIREFIGHTERS GRANT PROGRAM

Application
INSTRUMENT: GRANT
AGREEMENT NUMBER: EMW-2016-FV-00626
GRANTEE: North Little Rock Fire Department
DUNS NUMBER: 075636001
ANMOUNT: $400,000.00, Vehicle Acquisition

Project Description

The purpose of the Assistance to Firefighters Program is to protect the health and safety of the
public and firefighting personnel against fire and fire-related hazards.

After careful consideration, FEMA has determined that the recipient's project or projects
submitted as part of the recipient's application, and detailed in the project narrative as well as
the request details section of the application - including budget information - was consistent
with the Assistance to Firefighters Grant program's purpose and worthy of award. The
projects approved for funding are indicated by the budget or negotiation comments below.
The recipient shall perform the work described in the grant application for the recipient's
approved project or projects as itemized in the request details section of the application and
further described in the grant application narrative. The content of the approved portions of
the application - along with any documents submitted with the recipient's application - are
incorporated by reference into the terms of the recipient's award. The recipient may not
change or make any material deviations from the approved scope of work outlined in the
above referenced sections of the application without prior written approval, via amendment
request, from FEMA.

Period of Performance
10-JUL-17 to 09-JUL-18
Amount Awarded

The amount of the award is detailed in the attached Obligating Document for Award. The
following are the budgeted estimates for object classes for this grant (including Federal share plus
recipient match):

Personnel: $0.00
Fringe Benefits $0.00
Travel $0.00
Equipment $400,000.00
Supplies $0.00
Contractual $0.00
Construction $0.00
Other $0.00

Indirect Charges $0.00
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State Taxes $0.00
Total $400,000.00

NEGOTIATION COMMENTS IF APPLICABLE (max 8000 characters)
The Program Office has made the following reductions to your grant:

Funds for Rescue Vehicle were reduced to $400,000.
Additional Funding was not a fundable portion of this application and was removed from your
award.

Therefore, they have recommended the award at this level:
Total budget $ 400,000

Federal share $ 363,637

Applicant share $ 36,363

Any questions pertaining to your award package, please contact your GPD Grants Management
Specialist:

Deneen Thompson

Deneen.thompson@fema.dhs.gov

FEMA Officials

Program Officer: The Program Specialist is responsible for the technicail monitoring of the
stages of work and technical performance of the activities described in the approved grant application.
If you have any programmatic questions regarding your grant, please call the AFG Help Desk at 866-
274-0960 to be directed to a program specialist.

Grants Assistance Officer: The Assistance Officer is the Federal official responsible for
negotiating, administering, and executing all grant business matters. The Officer conducts the final
business review of all grant awards and permits the obligation of federal funds. If you have any
guestions regarding your grant please call ASK-GMD at 866-927-5646 to be directed to a Grants
Management Specialist.

Grants Operations POC: The Grants Management Specialist shall be contacted to address ali
financial and administrative grant business matters for this grant award. if you have any questions
regarding your grant please call ASK-GMD at 866-927-5646 to be directed to a specialist.

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS (IF APPLICABLE) (max 8000 characters)
National Environmental Policy Act
All recipients must comply with the requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)
and the Council on Environmental Quality (CEQ) Regulations for Implementing the Procedural
Provisions of NEPA, which requires recipients to use all practicable means within their authority,
and consistent with other essential considerations of national policy, to create and maintain
conditions under which people and nature can exist in productive harmony and fulfill the social,
economic, and other needs of present and future generations of Americans.

Nondiscrimination in Matters Pertaining to Faith-Based Organizations
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It is DHS policy to ensure the equal treatment of faith-based organizations in social service programs
administered or supported by DHS or its component agencies, enabling those organizations to
participate in providing important social services to beneficiaries. All recipients must comply with
the equal treatment policies and requirements contained in 6 C.F.R. Part 19 and other applicable
statues, regulations, and guidance governing the participations of faith-based organizations in
individual DHS programs.
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FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY
OBLIGATING DOCUMENT FOR AWARD/AMENDMENT

1a, AGREEMENT NO.

EMW-2016-FV-00626 NO. 71-6009176
0
6. RECIPIENT NAME AND 7. ISSUING OFFICE AND ADDRESS
ADDRESS Grant Programs Directorate
North Little Rock Fire 500 C Street, S.W.

Washington DC, 20528-7000
POC: Marketa Walker

Department

723 Maple Street
North Little Rock
Arkansas, 72114-4623

9. NAME OF RECIPIENT  PHONE NO.

2. AMENDMENT 3. RECIPIENT NO.

10. NAME OF PROJECT COORDINATOR

4. TYPEOF 5. CONTROL NO.
ACTION WX01287N2017T
AWARD

8. PAYMENT OFFICE AND ADDRESS
FEMA, Financial Services Branch

500 C Street, S.W., Room 723
Washington DC, 20472

PHONE NO.
1-866-274-0960

11. EFFECTIVE DATE OF 12. METHOD OF 13. ASSISTANCE ARRANGEMENT 14. PERFORMANCE PERIOD

PROJECT OFFICER 5013405386 Catherine Patterson
Billy Jones

THIS ACTION PAYMENT Cost Sharing
10-JUL-17 SF-270

15. DESCRIPTION OF ACTION
a. (Indicate funding data for awards or financial changes)

PROGRAM CFDA NO. ACCOUNTING DATA PRIOR
NAME (ACCS CODE) TOTAL

ACRONYM D000 09,0000 668 AWARD
KXHXEXKXX-XXXXK-X
AFG 97.044 2017-F6-C111-P4310000- $0.00
4101-D
TOTALS $0.00

From:10-JUL-17  To:09-JUL-18

Budget Period
From:29-JAN-17  To0:30-SEP-17

AMOUNT CURRENT
AWARDED TOTAL CUMULATIVE
THIS ACTION AWARD NON-
+OR () FEDERAL
COMMITMENT
$363,637.00  $363,637.00 $36,363.00
$363,637.00  $363,637.00 $36,363.00

b. To describe changes other than funding data or financial changes, attach schedule and check here.

N/A

16a. FOR NON-DISASTER PROGRAMS: RECIPIENT IS REQUIRED TO SIGN AND RETURN THREE (3) COPIES OF THIS

DOCUMENT TO FEMA (See Block 7 for address)

Assistance to Firefighters Grant recipients are not required to sign and return copies of this document. However, recipients should print

and keep a copy of this document for their records.

16b. FOR DISASTER PROGRAMS: RECIPIENT IS NOT REQUIRED TO SIGN

This assistance is subject to terms and conditions attached to this award notice or by incorporated reference in program legislation cited

above.

17. RECIPIENT SIGNATORY OFFICIAL (Name and Title)
N/A

18. FEMA SIGNATORY OFFICIAL (Name and Title)
Marketa Walker

DATE
N/A

DATE
05-JUL-17
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING DONALD A. SKRIVANOS TO
THE POSITION PREVIOUSLY HELD BY CHARLES LEE
JONES ON THE NORTH LITTLE ROCK PARKS &
RECREATION COMMISSION; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, a vacancy exists on the North Little Rock Parks & Recreation
Commission in the position previously held by Charles Lee Jones; and

WHEREAS, Donald A. Skrivanos wishes to serve on the North Little Rock
Parks & Recreation Commission, is well qualified for the position, and has completed a
Personal Information Sheet, a copy of which is attached hereto for informational
purposes only.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Donald A. Skrivanos is hereby appointed to the position
previously held by Charles Lee Jones on the North Little Rock Parks & Recreation
Commission, said term to expire April 26, 2021

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

/ZZZ§;MW%WﬁWW FILED (0D Am P.M.
C. JasonCarter, C"f}‘f’ Attorney By C( 1 i ¥ jaﬁ(}f\m

DATE ‘3”

FREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Coliector

North Litfyjiwis\—/
RECEIVED BY y
v





E] 191/,02:37a HBurns Park Golr Course ) DU I=1DA=1/01 P
.
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Name': Daas ald A gl‘k;‘u//huas peB; =S -IS- 1757
(Month, day, year)
Home Address: {06 L 4Visva Drive ML, Are. 7Z/Y
(Street, City, Zip)
Phone Number, So({-3S0-72%0 Length of Residence:_ € &
(Home and business) ' (Years)
Place of Employment: Dig 4—4[,,( - C r&Eew s 4 /4-.Ssac. .

Occupation: /!Uf--ul I Mepare Lrafce/"

Marital Status: gipél,g Spouse’s Name:

Spouse’s Place of Employment:

Spouse’s Gccupation:

Children (names):

Board or Commission: . | Pﬂ/? j( < 'é Qé) Ve ,;1]{ JoV/

Term of Appointment:

Summary of qualifications and/or experience: A-e ied 5 albes— | ;‘l‘-e ey perrepee.
F 4

Other board and commission served on: N oN €

Educational Background: (’ £ p-rr#/ H ;25 A S'eém,[ - fo AR

Collese UaeR

I hereby acknowledge that I have read and understand City Ordinance 5333 as amended by
Ordinance 6495, pertaining to absences by members of City Board and Comrmissions.

The above statements are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Signatureu/rdﬂ#- gﬁ&‘/m% Date: 7-17-2el7
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING GLADYS M. WEBB TO
THE NORTH LITTLE ROCK HOUSING & BUILDING BOARD
OF ADJUSTMENT & APPEALS (SIGN BOARD); AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of the position held by Gladys M. Webb on the North Little
Rock Housing & Building Board of Adjustment & Appeals (Sign Board) has expired; and

WHEREAS, Gladys Webb has provided a commendable and valuable public
service by serving on this board and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interest to keep
Ms. Webb as a member of this board; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Webb has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet as
required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Gladys M. Webb is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock
Housing & Building Board of Adjustment & Appeals (Sign Board), said term to expire
August 1, 2021.

SECTION 2:  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
FiLep FOT am, P.M.
By (g Iy Jason (oA fex
pate 2-4- X

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b
Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North I;itt&llock, Arkansas
RECEIVED BY | @\\/—\/

Y
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION CONGRATULATING JERRY JONES ON HIS
RECENT INDUCTION INTO THE PRO FOOTBALIL HALL OF
FAME AND RECOGNIZING HIM FOR HIS MANY
CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK;
DECLARING AUGUST 3, 2017 AS “JERRY JONES DAY”; AND
FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock wishes to congratulate its favorite
son, Jerry Jones, owner of the Dallas Cowboys of the National Football League, on his
induction into the Pro Football Hall of Fame — a distinguishing honor and
acknowledgment that couldn’t be given to a more-deserving individual; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Jones has been a long-time friend and benefactor to the City of
North Little Rock through his support of outreach programs for local children, including
the highly successful Police Athletic League; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Jones grew up in North Little Rock, attended school at North
Little Rock High School, played on the NLR Football Team and fully understands the
dynamics of the community and surrounding areas; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Jones has never forgoften his Arkansas roots, and his North
Little Rock community will never forget him and his thoughtful, caring and generous
contributions to the City and its residents.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That it is with a great deal of pride and appreciation that the City
of North Little Rock recognizes Jerry Jones for his many acts of kindness and generous
contributions benefiting the North Little Rock youth.

SECTION 2: That as a further recognition of Mr. Jones and his many
accomplishments, the City of North Liftle Rock declares August 3, 2017 as “Jerry
Jones Day”.

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A, Smith

Page 1 of 2





SPONSORS: ATTEST:

CLd i,

May?r/ Joe A. Smith Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROV S TO%M

C. Jaso arter, City Attorney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

FILED V09 AM. _____ PM.
ByQ\'M HJ?M Jagon (onde
DATE QZ 3- f':l?

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North th& Arkansas
RECEIVED BY — P
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION EXTENDING THE CURRENT VOLUME
DISCOUNT AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF LITTLE ROCK
FOR CLASS 1 AND CLASS 1V SOLID WASTE LANDFILL
SERVICES; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the City of Little Rock (*City of LR”) owns Class I and Class IV
landfills and responded to a request issued by the Pulaski County Regional Solid Waste
Management District (“the District”) for proposals for landfill services to be provided for
household garbage collected from the City of North Little Rock (“the City” or“City of
NLR”) and other certain cities within the District; and

WHEREAS, the City of LR responded with its proposal and was notified on
January 9, 2012 that its bid/proposal for the disposal of solid waste from the City had been
accepted; and

WHEREAS, on March 26, 2012, Resolution No. 8031 was adopted authorizing the
Mayor and City Clerk to enter into a Volume Discount Agreement with the City of LR for
Class T and Class IV solid waste landfill services, the term of said agreement to run from
April 2, 2012 thru April 1, 2017 with two (2) five-year mutually agreed upon renewals; and

WHEREAS, the City of LR proposes to extend the current Volume Discount
Agreement with the City of NLR for another five-year term (thru April 1, 2022), continuing
with the current tipping fee pricing of $13.59 per ton and adding any current and state fees
which are currently $2.80 per ton (see extension authorization attached hereto as Exhibit
“A™); and

WHEREAS, Ark. Code Ann. § 14-58-104(b) authorizes the governing body of a
city to extend a contract, and it is in the best interests of the City and it residents that the
agreement with the City of LR be extended another five years.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the Extension
Authorization between the City of NLR and the City of LR for Class I and Class IV Solid
Waste landfill services (substantially similar to Exhibit “A” attached hereto), said extension
to run through April 1, 2022.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

Page 1 of 2





SPO ATTEST:

Mayzz/ t Joe A Smlth Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

iy

C. Jason Larter, Clty Attorney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

rep (LOY  AM. PM
BY C,\’(Lj N’cj )MOV\ (0 rfe
pateg- - (7

Diane Whitbey, Cify Clerk and Collector

g
RECEIVED BY
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EXHIBIT

0" Regional Recycling RECEIVE™
- & Waste Reduction m
District 2.6 201
o MR MRS
.-.’-—-_‘—M‘—ﬁ
July 24,2017
Mayor Joe Smith VIA EMAIL: jsmith@nlr.ar.gov

CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
300 Main Street
North Little Rock, AR 72114-5326

RE: Landfill Tipping Fees Arrangement Extension

Dear Mayor Smith:

The City of Little Rock Solid Waste proposes to extend the current Solid Waste District
Contract with the City of North Little Rock with adjustment that the City of Little Rock is no
longer absorbing the district and state fees as part of the tipping fee bid price. The City of Little
Rock proposes to continue the current tipping fee pricing and to adjust the fee to add any current
district and state fees which are currently $2.80 per ton. The proposed price will be extended for
five (5) years and may be adjusted annually by the U.S. Implicit Price Deflator (IPD) for the U.S.
Gross National Product, updated March 31 each year and published on the Arkansas Department
of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) Solid Waste Division website. Below is a detail of the
proposed fees.

Municipality Tipping Fee SRATEIATES Total
Fees
North Little Rock to City of
Little Rock Landfill $13.59/ton $2.80/ton $16.39/ton

I would like to propose this renewal by all parties. If you agree with the extension of this
agreement, please sign this letter below.

Sincerely,

&ﬂﬁ} Ajééq

Craig Douglass
Executive Director
Regional Recycling and Waste Reduction District

Lo Mr. Warren Atkins, City of Little Rock Solid Waste
Mr. Harold Ford, City of North Little Rock Solid Waste

300 Spring Bldg, Suite 200, Little Rock, AR 72201 » 501.340.8787 FAX 501.340.8785 « www.regionalrecycling.org

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: Judge Barry Hyde, Pulaski County
Gary Fletcher, Mayor, City of Jacksonville « Mark Stodola, Mayor, City of Little Rock « Mike Watson, Mayor, City of Maumelle
Joe Smith, Mayor, City of North Little Rock + Virginia Young, Mayor, City of Sherwood + McKinzie "MAC™ Riley, Mayor, City of Wrightsville

PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER - RECYCLE THIS





Mayor Joe Smith
North Little Rock

Date

Mayor Mark Stodola
Little Rock

Date
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE LOW BID OF BOB
KENNEDY CONSTRUCTION FOR THE EXTENSION OF
COUNTS MASSIE ROAD; APPROPRIATING FUNDS; AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock (the “City™) has long supported the
extension of Counts Massie Road in the western area of the City to the Maumelle City
Limits and on to Interstate 40; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 8917, the City accepted funds from the
now-dissolved Counts Massie/Collins Road Municipal Improvement District No. 1 in
the amount of $357,000.00, said funds being ear-marked for the Counts Massie Road
Extension Project, and the City of Maumelle has committed road improvement funds
toward the cost of the project as well; and

WHEREAS, the City has advertised for bids for the extension of Counts Massie
Road (see location Map and Bid Summary No. 17-3474 attached hereto, respectively, as
Exhibits “A” and “B”); and

WHEREAS, the low bidder for the project was Bob Kennedy Construction with
a bid of $1,042,894.50; and

WHEREAS, cost sharing for the project will be as follows: $357,000.00 from
the Counts Massie/Collins Road Municipal Improvement District No. | and $445,131.42
from the City of North Little Rock and $240,763.08 from the City of Maumelle
(representing 65% and 35%, respectively, of the remaining balance).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the low bid of Bob Kennedy Construction for the Counts
Massie Road Extension Project in the amount of $1,042,894.50 is hereby accepted.

SECTION 2: That all contracts and related documents necessary to effectuate
work on the project by Bob Kennedy Construction will be reviewed and approved by
the Office of the City Attorney prior to execution thereof.

SECTION 3: That the amount of $445,131.42 (representing the City’s share of
the cost) is hereby appropriated from the Street Fund (with the remaining balance for

the project coming from the former Counts Massie/Collins Road Improvement District
No. 1 in the amount of $357,000.00 and $240,763.08 from the City of Maumelle).

Page 1 of A





SECTION 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and
after its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

Jaons s

- o el
C.\Tasoxyﬁarter, City Attorney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

FILED [IDR_ AM. P.M.
ay Cit M4 Jugon Qo
DATE & ¥~ |3

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Litﬂfn{,}\lmsas
RECEIVED BY 4 ' -
v
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R-17-]3]
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE LOW BID OF LEGACY
HOUSING, LLC FOR STREET AND  UTILITY
IMPROVEMENTS ON 4™, s™ pOPLAR AND MAGNOLIA
STREETS IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK;
APPROPRIATING FUNDS; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 9183 adopted March 27, 2017, the City
of North Little Rock (the “City”) entered into a Development Agreement with ERC
Holdings, LLC regarding future development plans for vacant property located
generally north of East 4™ Street, South of East 5™ Strect extended, ease of Poplar Street
and west of Magnolia Street; and

WHEREAS, ERC has invested substantial funds and resources in designing a
development that conforms with and enhances the overall appearance of the City’s
downtown community; and

WHEREAS, in order to fo forward with the new development, and pursuant to
the Development Agreement between the parties, certain public infrastructure additions
and improvements are necessary to facilitate the project; and

WHEREAS, the City has advertised for bids for street and utility improvements
on 4™, 5™ Poplar and Magnolia Streets (sce location Map and Bid Summary No. 17-
3476 attached hereto, respectively, as Exhibits “A” and “B”); and

WHEREAS, the low bidder for the project was Legacy Housing, LLC with a bid
of $535,734.00.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the low bid of Legacy Housing, LLC for the Street and
Utility Improvements Project on 4™, 5% Poplar and Magnolia Streets in the amount of
$535,734.00 is hereby accepted.

SECTION 2: That all contracts and related documents necessary to effectuate
work on the project by Legacy Housing, LI.C will be reviewed and approved by the
Office of the City Attorney prior to execution thereof.

SECTION 3: That the amount of $535,734.00 is hereby appropriated from the
Street Fund.

Page 1 of 2





SECTION 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and
after its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

C.\}aso; C}P{ér, City\?ﬁtomey

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/

FILED J[9C5. AM. P.M.
By Q%A@e{@nwf
DATE S-8-17

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Cellector

North Little Rock,ﬁansas
omea C)

RECEIVED BY 7{@ 7h

hY
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R-17-_{4D

RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE LOW BID OF RED ROC,
INC. FOR THE PARKER STREET IMPROVEMENTS
PROJECT; APPROPRIATING FUNDS; AND FOR OTHER
PURPOSES.

WHERFEAS, the City of North Little Rock (the “City”) has advertised for bids
for the Parker Street Improvements Project (see location Map and Bid Summary No.
17-3479 aftached hereto, respectively, as Exhibits “A” and “B”); and

WHEREAS, the low bidder for the project was Red Roc, Inc. with a bid of
$137,165.60; and

WHEREAS, costs for the project will be shared equally between the City and
the developer, Porches, LLC.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE I'T' RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the low bid of Red Roc, Inc. for the Parker Street
Improvements Project in the amount of $137,165.60 is hereby accepted.

SECTION 2: That all contracts and related documents necessary to effectuate
work on the project by Red Rock, Inc. will be reviewed and approved by the Office of
the City Attorney prior to execution thereof.

SECTION 3: That the amount of $68,582.80 (representing the City’s 50% share
of the cost) is hereby appropriated from the Street Fund.

SECTION 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and
after its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

Page 1 of X





APPROVED AS TO FORM:

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

FiLED OB am. P.M.
ByC/ly /4//4 Tason Larder
DATE Q £-17

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED BY 7/4;%/14& <
N —
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R-17- Iﬂ{(

RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND CERTIFYING AMOUNTS
OF LIENS TO BE FILED WITH THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX
COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES IN
THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS AS A
RESULT OF GRASS CUTTING EXPENSES AND ABATEMENT
OF OTHER NUISANCES; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, Section 8.3.1 of North Little Rock Municipal Code (“NLRMC”)
Chapter 8 (Nuisance Abatement and Property Maintenance), requites all property
owners and occupants within the municipal boundaries of the City of North Little Rock
(“the City™) to cut weeds, grass and abate other nuisances and unsanitary conditions on
their property; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 14-54-901, the City has the authority
to do whatever is necessary to correct the unsightly and unsanitary conditions and to
charge the costs thereof to the owners of lots or property who neglect or refuse to
remove, abate or eliminate any weed or grass conditions after having been given seven
(7) days written notice to do so; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Ark, Code Ann. § 14-54-901, the City of North
Little Rock has corrected conditions existing on certain lots or other real property
within the City of North Little Rock and is entitled to compensation pursuant to Ark.
Code Ann. § 14-54-904; and

WHEREAS, the City has demanded payment in the amount allowed by law
from the property owners where work was performed and notified said owners of the
City’s intent to file a lien against their properties; and

WHEREAS, said property owners have failed to make payment, no part of the
debt has been paid, and the City claims a lien on the herein referenced properties (listed
on Exhibit “A” attached hereto) pursuant to Ark. Code Ann, §§ 14-54-901 and 14-54-
903; and

WHEREAS, state law also provides for a lien against the subject properties,
with the amount of lien to be determined by the City Council at a hearing held after
notice to the owner(s) thereof by certified mail or publication (see Exhibit “A” attached
hereto), with said amount (plus a ten percent collection penalty) to be thereafter
certified to the Pulaski County Tax Collector; and

WHEREAS, a hearing for the purpose of determining such liens has been set for
6:05 p.m. August 14, 2017, in order to allow for service of the attached notice of same
upon the listed property owners, by certified mail or publication as is necessary.





NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That after notice to property owners, a public hearing was held at
6:05 p.m. on August 14, 2017, for the purpose of determining the amount of liens, if
any, to be filed against certain real property as the result of grass cutting and abatement
of other nuisances by the City of North Little Rock.

SECTION 2: That after said public hearing, and upon the verification of the
Director of the North Little Rock Code Enforcement Department, the amounts listed on
Exhibit “A” are hereby certified as obligations that are owed to the City and proper to
be filed with the Pulaski County Treasurer and Assessor as liens against the real
property associated therewith.

SECTION 3: That the Director of the Code Enforcement is hereby ordered to
file liens as provided in this resolution; except that, prior to submission, he will update
the list to remove any lien amounts that have been paid in full prior to forwarding the
list to the County.

SECTION 4: That the Director of the Code Enforcement is authorized to
execute and file such documents as are necessary to release any lien that is paid in full.

SECTION 5: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

FILED [/ 0% am.

P.M.

By (_ o M ~Tason Cardr

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b 7 -
DATE R-%-17

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Cellector

North Litt&/?ack, Axl as
RECEIVED BY /4~ ﬁ()ﬂ/’ a S






EXHIBIT “A”

LEGAL NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Notice is hereby given that lien amounts upon the following described lands will be
considered by the North Little Rock City Council at their meeting on August 14, 2017, in
the North Little Rock Council Chambers. The owner(s) has the right to contest the lien
amount before the City Council at the public hearing.

33N3080016000

1115 E. 2™, NLR

Cordelia Givens

Lot 4 Block 17, E. Argenta
Grass cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N3080015200

1116 E. 2™ NLR
Ameriland USA LLC

Lot 10 Block 16, E. Argenta
Grass cutting

Amt, 185.00

33N3180022200

2222 E. 2", NLR
Dorothy Carter

Lot 8 Block 36, Choctaw
Grass cutting

Amt, 185.00

33N3180009100

2300. 2", NLR

Dorothy Carter

Lot 02 Block 24, Choctaw
Board & Secure

Amt. 185.00

33N3180009100

2305 N. 2™ St, NLR
Dorothy Carter

Lot 2 Block 24, Choctaw
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N3180009200

2307 E. 2™, NLR
Dorothy Carter

Lot 3 Block 24, Choctaw
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N3180012800

2621 E. 2", NLR

Shortsale Your Home Corp.
Lot 6 Block 27, Choctaw
Grass Cutting

Amt, 185.00

23N0490003200

2910 B. 2", NLR

Betty Momphrey

Lot 6 Block 4, John Baldwin
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

23N0490003100

2914 E. 2", NLR

Mary Nutt

Lot 5 Block 4, John Baldwin
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2240202100

905 E. 16", NLR
Bankers Trust Co.

Lot 10 Block 5
Wright’s Sub of Haney
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2520014300

1515 W. 16", NLR
William Ivory

Lot 9 Block 13, Laskers
Grass Cuftting

Amt. 185.00

33N2520020800

1620 W 16™, NLR
Gregg T Greer

Lot 5 Block 19, Laskers
Grass Cutting

Amt, 185.00

33N2520020900

1624 W. 16", NLR
Keith/Debbie Waggoner
Lot 6 Block 19, Laskers
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2520016900

1709 W. 16% NLR
Abren Williams

c/o Lora Shavers

Lot 10 Block 15, Laskers
Grass Cutting

Amt, 185.00

33N2640014400

2212 W. 16" NLR

David G Butchart

Lot 3 Block 39, Laskers 2™
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00





33N2640014300

2216 W. 16", NLR

Frank Carrico

Lot 2 Block 39, Laskers 2™
Grass Cutting

Amt, 185.00

33N2530002500

1419 W, Short 17" NLR
Henry/Monteen Purifoy
Lot 8-9 Block 4, Maloney
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2520005300

1801 W. Long 17" , NLR
Timothy Smith

Lot 12 Block 5, Laskers
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2580000100
307 W. 18" NLR

Patricia Young Family Trust
PT NE SE SE COM NE COR NE
SE SETH 8218 TON R/W 18TH
ST TH wW92.5' FOR POB TH
N140' W50.5' S140' E50.5' TO
POB 27 2N 12W

Cassinelli Sub

Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2530000900

1212 W. 18" NLR

Tina Pesina/Raquel Ochoa
Lot 3 Block 2, Maloney
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.

33N2460015400

1301 W. 18" NLR
Victor Wayne Hinson
Lot 5 Block 14
Missouri-Pacific
Grass Cufting

Amt. 185.00

33N2110013200

118 E. 19", NLR

Capitol Financial Dev

c/o Lila Riggs

Lot 10 Block 17, N. Argenta
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2490001100
1703 W. 19%, NKR
Novenia Young
Lot 1-2 Block 2
Walthour & Flake
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2270002000
1501 W. 20" NLR

Brian Patrick Johnston

PT SENENW SWBEG20 FT N
&20FT WOFSECORTHN
140 FT,W 100 FT,S 140 FT,E 100
FTTOBEG 27 2N 12W

Grass Cutting
Amt. 185.00

33N2350001600

816 W. 23", NLR
Jamison Brown

Lot 13 Block 0, Plainview

Grass Cutting
Amt. 185.00

33N2350001800

826 W. 23" NLR
Harvest
Inderdenominational
Ministries

¢/o Raymond Govan

Lot 15 Block 0, Plainview
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2350002300

918 W. 23", NLR

Carol Nash

Lot 20 Block 0, Plainview
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2450001800

1101 W. 23", NLR
Danny Jones

Lot 1 Block 3, Coor’s
Grass Cutting

Amt, 185,00

33N2340002600

823 W. 24" NLR
Steven/Brandon Vines

Lot 11-12 Block 2, Machins
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2420001900

1212 W. 25" NLR
Angela Gibson

Lot 1 Bik 3, Union Heights
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2440000300

1419 W. 25" NLR
David Johnson

Lot 2 Block 0

Bland’s Oversize Lots
Grass Cutting

Amt, 185.00

33N1880011400
421 W. 35" NLR
Merle Milam

Lot 5 Block 6
Moore’s Glendale
Grass Cutting
Amt. 185.00





33N1880016200
624 W. 35", NLR
Luke Gee

Lot 1 Block 11
Moores Glendale
Grass Cufting
Amt. 185.00

33N1770011100
824 W. 37" NLR
Matthew T Hill

Lot 6 Blk 15, Booher’s Add.

Grass Cutting
Amt. 185.00

33N1640004700

1208 W. 43, NLR
Susan Seramoush
Mouradian

Lot 49 Blk 0, CW Harrod
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N0370002100

211 W. 47" NLR
Michael D. Davin

Lot 1 Blk 3, Massie West
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N0120022300
6612 Allwood, NLR
David D Jones, Sr.
Lot 2 Block 10
Green Hills

Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

23N067002000
4821 Alpha, NLR
Larry Morehead/
Brittany Taylor

Lot 525-526 Block 0
Rich Acres

2 - Grass Cuttings
Amt. 370.00

23N0670004800

5020 Alpha, NLR
Bobbi/Carlos Lantrip

Lot 145 Block 0, Rich Acres
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N3180029600

2611 Arkansas, NLLR
Mrs, Jessic Carter

¢/o Herman Cousert
Lot 3,4, w38’ Block 43
Choctaw

Grass Cutting

Amt, 185.00

33N3180034200

2706 Arkansas Ave.
Coleman Property Mgmt.
Lot 10 Block 47, Choctaw
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2490001000
1903 Augusta, NLR
Novenia Young

Lot 1-2 Block 2
Walthour &Flake
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N1410011800
3807 Burks, NLR

Lola Korte

PT SE NW BEG 505'S & 300' E OF NW
COR OF FINKE TR, TH § 45", E 150'N
45, W150' TO BEG 22 2N 12W

Grass Cutting
Amt. 185.00

33N2570001400
1716 Chandler, NLR
David Edgecombe
Lot 12-13 Block 1
Holt’s Industrial
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2310006400

22 Ctiftwood, NLR

John Shelby Hudgens

Lot 22 Block 2, Broadview
Grass Cutling

Amt. 185.00

33N2550005200

409 College Park, NLR
Kwesi Jones

Lot 13 Blk 5

College Park N1

Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

23N0610033100

4901 Coral, NLR

Kolen Jarvis Cherron Sr.
Lot G Blk 95

John L. Atkins

Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N0140303700

50 Coronado Cr., NLR
Blake Barnes

Lot 20 Block 22
Indian Hills 3N

Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

23N0460046700

808 N. E, NLR
Nathaniel/Ollie Williams
Lot 17 Block 25, Dixie
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

23N0460042900

821 N.E,NLR
Nathaniel Williams
Lot 2 Block 24, Dixie
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00





33N2430000400

2518 Franklin, NLR
Jearlean McFadden Wade
Lot 4 Block 0, Carman
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N1880007700

3614 Gum, NLR

AR United Invest. LLC
.ot 0 Block (3
Moore’s Glendale
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N0181506600
4900 Hickory, NLR
James McDaniel
Lot 68A Block 200
Park Hill 15N
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N3180027200
115 S. Laure], NLR

Annie Watson
Lot n47* of S94°
Lots 1,2,& 3 Block 41

Choctaw
Grass Cutting
Amt. 185.00

33N0510002000
5000 Longview, NLR
Frederick Dyer

Lot 20 Block 0
Fulton’s Longview
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2110039200

1315 Maple, NLR
David/Ann Nicholas

Lot 10 Block 44, N. Argenta
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2110032000

1419 Maple, NLR

Amber McGinty

Lot 11 Block 37, N Argenta
Grass Cutting

Amt.185.00

33N2570002600

Marion, NLR

Gloryland Bapt. Church

Lot 9 Bik 2, Holt’s Indusrial
Grass Cutting

Amt, 185.00

23N0170009500

111 Meadow Park Dr. NLLR
Joe/Paula Heathcock

Lot 4 Block 6, Meadow Park
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2640004600

1702 Nannette, NLR
Morgan Tate& Brewer LLC
Lot 1 Block 29, Laskers 2™
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2890106300

1310 N. Olive, NLR
Daniel Miguel Richmond
Lot 3 Block 7, Davis
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2220003000
1500 N. Olive,. NLR
D&G Partnership

¢/o Treadway Electric
Lot 6 Block 4, Baums
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2220002500
1522 N. Olive, NLLR
Joe Baldwin

Lot 1 Block 4, Baums
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

23N0670013100

425 Parkdale, NLR
Berthena Nunn

Lot 169 Block 0, Rich Acres
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N0710002400

5302 Pike Ave, NLR

Donna Vel Weaver

Lot 24 Block 0, Hill Heights
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

23N0710009700
301 Plain, NLR
Alease Evans

Lot 6 Block 19, Poe
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185,00

23N0710009600
305 Plain, NLR
Alease Evans

Lot 5 Block 19, Poe
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2890109000
1322 N. Poplar, NLR
Randy Bogard
George Bates 111

Lot 1 Block 9, Davis
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00





33N2110019400

1721 N. Poplar, NLR
Victor Lopez

Lot 11 Blk 24, N. Argenta
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2110050900

1920 N. Poplar, NLR
God Is Love Church

Lot 12 Blk 60, N. Argenta
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

23N0770014700

601 Protho, NLR
Walter/Dollie Faux

Lot 0 Blk 233, Prothro Sub
Grass Cutting

Ami. 185.00

23N0710001500
Rogers, NLR
Garry Marshal/
Diana Aldridge
Lot 4 Block 5, Poe
Grass Cutting
Amt. 185.00

23N0710002800
4001 Rogers, NLR
J.C. Mulherin

Lot 3 Block 8, Poe
Grass Cutting
Amt. 185.00

23N0710002900
4003 Rogers, NLR
Clifton/Anita Green
Lot 4 Block 8, Poe
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2560007900

1901 Schaer, NLR
Brian Patrick Johnston
Lot 12 Block 9, Schaers
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N1510001500

4624 Schaer, NLR
Oromis Corp.

Lot 1 Block 2, Holeads
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

23N0710004900

308 Short, NLR

Choice Equity Investment
Lot 3 Block 13, Poe
Grass Cufting

Amt. 185.00

23N0710005600
318 Short, NLR
Larry Davis

Lot 3 Block 15, Poe

Grass Cutting
Atm. 185.00

23N0710001200

319 Short, NLR

John/ Gwendolyn Brown
Lot 1 Block 5, Poe
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

23N0710006100
320 Short, NLR
Krista McLeod

Lot 5 Block 16, Poe
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

23N0710005900

322 Short, NLR

Wm L/Joann Keel Sr.
Lot 3 Block 16, Poe
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2110035100

1415 Sycamore, NLR

J.B. Moser

Lot 10 Block 40, N. Argenta
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N2590002800
1612 Sycamore, NLR
Maxrock, Inc.

Lot 4 Block 3, Kahn
Grass Cutting

Amt, 185.00

33N2590002700
1616 Sycamore
Maxrock, Inc.

Lot 3 Block 3, Kahn
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N1880011100
3514 Sycamore, NLR
Bruce Tate

Lot 3 Block 6
Moore’s Glendale
Grass Cufting

Amt. 185.00

33N1880011000
3516 Sycamore, NLR
Bruce Tate

Lot 2 Block 6
Moore’s Glendale
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00





33N0370012200

4900 Sycamore, NLR

K & L Investments Inc.

Lot 1 Block 8, Massie West
Grass Cutting

Amt, 185.00

33N2850002800

1404 Y2 N. Vine, NLR
Vera Jenkins

Lot 2 Block 5, E. Central
Grass Cutting

Amt, 185.00

33N2240102700

1506 Vine, NLR

Sam Martin

Lot 7 Block 3

Fulk’s Sub of Haney’s
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N3180024400

2116 E. Washington, NLR
Buckeye Properties LLC
Lot 6 Block 38, Choctaw
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00

33N3180018500

2509 E. Washington, NLR
Alisa Merchant/

Charles McFee

Lot 3 Block 33, Choctaw
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185,00

33N1880004400
3709 Willow, NLR
Marvin Gilbert

Lot A Block 2
Moore’s Glendale
Amt, 185.00

33N0090024600
6404 Windhill, NLR
Reginald E. Andrews
Lot 14 Block 12
Tanglewood Annex
Grass Cutting

Amt. 185.00






R-17- f#.2
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING FUNDS FOR THE
PURCHASE OF TWO (2) BOOM TRUCKS FOR THE NORTH
LITTLE ROCK SANITATION DEPARTMENT; AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock (“the City™) needs to purchase two (2)
boom trucks to be utilized by the Sanitation Depattment; and

WHEREAS, Arkansas municipalities are authorized to participate in cooperative
purchasing as described in A.C.A. § 19-11-249, as an alternative to competitive bidding;
and

WHEREAS, this type of truck is a specialized vehicle, and the Sanitation
Department contacted the National Joint Powers Alliance (“NJPA”™), a public agency
utilized by the City of North Little Rock and other member municipalities and state
agencies in the acquisition of such equipment; and

WHEREAS, Petersen Industries will provide the boom trucks (pursuant to
specifications provided by the Sanitation Department) at a total cost of $164,631.94
(including delivery; mot including applicable taxes) {sce Petersen Quote under NJPA
Contract No. 07013-PI1 attached hereto as Exhibit “A”).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That acquisition of two (2) boom trucks for the North Little Rock
Sanitation Department in the amount of $164,631.94 (plus applicable taxes) through NJPA
cooperative purchasing is authorized.

SECTION 2: That funds for the purchase of the herein described equipment are
hereby appropriated from the Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund,

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and afier its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
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PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

FILED l/“&g AM. P.M.
By/‘fflé/ /4//0/ ason carter]
DATE g8

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
Noirth Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED BY O{: %m & S

Page 2 of 2





EXHIBIT

,/q “ Quote

LIGHTNING LOADER,

[] E| B
T
o .
Bill To
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
CITY GARAGE
1208 SYCAMORE
N. LITTLE ROCK, AR 72114
us
END USER: N. LITTLE ROCK, AR (CITY OF)
Customer No : Slspsn Payment terms
961 5 Net 30
Loc PPD/COL Ship via Ship Date
03 DRIVE AWAY A.S.A.P.
Qty Ordered UOM Item No

1.00 EA LOADER

AS CONFIGURED BELOW
PAINT LOADER: DUPONT NASON ACRYLIC 817
WHITE,

Feature/Kit Components- LOADER

1.00 EA 0.TL3
MODEL TL3 BASE LOADER

1.00 EA 03.115A1
HEAVY DUTY SWING MOTOR

1.00 EA 02,40RP
IMPACT RESISTANT UHMW O/R WEAR

PADS
1.00 EA 10.04 BUWL
BOOM-UP WARNING LIGHT/AUDIBLE
ALARM
1.00 EA 10,05 DS
DUAL LED STROBE, MOUNTED ON
HEAD
1.00 EA 12,05 HG
HOSE GUARDS- HEAD & VALVE BANK
1.00 EA 12.20 PS#6
POLYURATHANE SLEEVES FOR #6
HOSES
1.00 EA 12.36 HD
HD CONTROL BOX
THROTTLE ENGINE KILL & HORN
1.00 EA 12.027TP
TANDEM PUMP IN LIEU OF SINGLE
18 GMP
1.00 EA 12.07 10LB
Fire Extinguisher, 10lb
1.00 EA 11.02
LOADER SINGLE COLOR (ENAMEL)
AS DEFINED BELOW
1.00 EA 07.10SB60
STANDARD BUCKET 60"

1.00 EA 8.0 DUMP BODY
AS CONFIGURED BELOW

NJPA Contract No: 07013-PlI

Quotie No Quote Date
20170420 5/19/2017
Ship to

CITY OF NORTH LITTLE
CITY GARAGE

1208 SYCAMORE

N. LITTLE ROCK, AR 72114
us

No Chassis Before: AUGUST

Unit price  Disc

Page

Extended price

43,483.00 2.00 42,613,34
1.00
41,790.00
1.00 0.00
1.00 299.00
1.00 0.00
1.00 393.00
1.00 268.00
1.00 534.00
1.00 0.00
1.00 0.00
1.00 199.00
1.00 0.00
1.00 0.00
23,772.00 2.00 23,296.56





Quote

PAINT BODY: DUPONT NASON ACRYLIC 817

WHITE.

Feature/Kit Componenis- 8.0 DUMP BODY

1.00 EA 8.29 2030-HDX
MODEL HDX-2030 HARDOX BODY
1/8" SIDES, 3/16" FLOOR
1.00 EA 8.40 5-BD
STANDARD BARN DOORS FOR BODY
1.00 EA 8.47 WL-BW

Bill To

CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
CITY GARAGE

1208 SYCAMORE

N. LITTLE ROCK, AR 72114
us

WIRE LOOM FOR BODY WIRING
LIGHTNING LOADER.

Quote No Quote Date

1.00

22,863.00

1.00
1.00

Page

NJPA Contract No: 07013-PlI

5/19/2017 2

Ship to

CITY OF NORTH LITTLE
CITY GARAGE

1208 SYCAMORE

N. LITTLE ROCK, AR 72114

us

END USER;: N. LITTLE ROCK, AR (CITY OF) No Chassis Before: AUGUST
Customer No Sispsn Payment terms
961 5 Net 30
Loc PPD/COL Ship via Ship Date
03 DRIVE AWAY A.S.AP,
Qty Ordered UOM Item No Unit price Disc Extended price
1.00 EA  10.06 SS 1.00
SINGLE STROBE MOUNTED ON REAR
OF BODY 377.00
1.00 EA  10.07 BG 1.00
BRUSH GUARD FOR SINGLE REAR
STROBE 72.00
1.00 EA 8.6 WC-S
WIRE CONDUIT (STEEL) 1.00 191.00
1.00 EA  11.03 1.00
ADD, LOADER & BODY SAME COLOR 269 00
(PI COLOR NOT BLACK OR ORANGE) :
1.00 EA NI-CHASSIS 96,960.00  2.00 95,020.80
ENTER DESCRIPTION HERE
NIPA COMMISSION
2018 FREIGHTLINER M2 106 TANDEM AXLE
1.00 NI-EQUIPMENT 1,838.00  2.00 1,801.24
NON-CONTRACT ITEMS:
BRACKET FOR WATER COOLER.
UPGRADE TO DUPONT NASON ACRYLIC 817
WHITE PAINT FOR LOADER AND BODY,
ROGER WILLIAMS SubTotal 162,731.94
Delivery 1,900.00
Signature Date Tax 0.00
Total Quote 164,631.94

(€)2002 Bract Seftviare Horth America
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING LOCAL GOVERNMENT
ENDORSEMENT OF CFO NETWORK TO PARTICIPATE IN
THE TAX BACK PROGRAM AS AUTHORIZED BY SECTION
15-4-2706(D) OF THE CONSOLIDATED INCENTIVE ACT OF
2003; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, in order to be considered for participation in the Tax Back
Program, the local government must endorse a business to participate in the Tax Back
Program and authorize the refund of local sales and use taxes as provided in the
Consolidated Incentive Act of 2001; and

WHEREAS, said endorsement must be made on specific form available from
the Arkansas Department of Economic Development; and

WHEREAS, CFO Network, 321 Maple Street, North Little Rock, AR 72114,
has sought to participate in the program and more specifically has requested benefits
accruing from the expansion and remodeling of its facilities on Maple Street in order to
accommodate additional employees; and

WHEREAS, CFO Network, has agreed to furnish the local government all
necessary information for compliance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That CFO Network is hereby endorsed by the City Council of
North Little Rock, Arkansas for benefits from the sales and use tax refunds as provided
by Section 15-4-2706(d) of the Consolidated Incentive Act of 2003,

SECTION 2: That the Department of Finance and Administration is authorized
to refund local sales and use tax to CFO Network.

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

S ATTEST:

Mafor Joe A. SmT % > Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
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C. Jason E/arter City Al Attorney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

FILED \ D P.M.

By Gl M{w \ar\ (her

DATE ‘@ : )?‘\{ /‘-)

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Little Rock, Arkansas
RECEIVED Bm\/
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING LOCAL GOVERNMENT
ENDORSEMENT OF BEN E. KEITH COMPANY, D/B/A BEN L.
KEITH FOODS AND BEN E. KEITH MID-SOUTH, TO
PARTICIPATE IN THE TAX BACK PROGRAM AS
AUTHORIZED BY SECTION 15-4-2706(D) OF THE
CONSOLIDATED INCENTIVE ACT OF 2003; AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, in order to be considered for participation in the Tax Back
Program, the local government must endorse a business to participate in the Tax Back
Program and benefit from the sales and use tax refunds as provided in the Consolidated
Incentive Act of 2003; and

WHEREAS, said endorsement must be made on specific form available from
the Arkansas Department of Economic Development (“AEDC”); and

WHEREAS, in 2014, with the adoption of Resclution No. 8593, the City of
North Little Rock endorsed the participation of Ben E. Keith Company (d/b/a Ben E.
Keith Foods and Ben E. Keith Mid-South) in the Tax Back Program for new
construction and expansion of its facilities in North Little Rock; and

WHEREAS, Ben E. Keith Company, #1 Ben E. Keith Way, North Little Rock,
AR 72117, has sought to again participate in the program and more specifically has
requested benefits accruing from a supplemental $20M investment to expand its
facilities on Ben E. Keith Way, including remodeling work, new construction, and
additional equipment thereby creating new employment opportunities for North Little
Rock; and

WHEREAS, the AEDC and Department of Finance and Administration have
determined that it would be best for Ben E. Keith Company to submit a new Tax Back
application for the additional investment in its facilities; and

WHEREAS, Ben E. Keith Company has agreed to furnish the local government
all necessary information for compliance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Ben E. Keith Company, d/b/a Ben E. Keith Foods and Ben
E. Keith Mid-South, is hereby endorsed by the City Council of North Little Rock,
Arkansas for benefits from the sales and use tax refunds as provided by Section 15-4-
2706(d) of the Consolidated Incentive Act of 2003.
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SECTION 2: That the Department of Finance and Administration is authorized
to refund local sales and use tax to Ben E. Keith Company, d/b/a Ben E. Keith Foods
and Ben E. Keith Mid-South.

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

/@?@}%—

E-Jasod Carter, City Attorney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

FiLED | | 0% PM.

By (14 My Jm (pvt-2,
DATE %» ‘.5”{”}

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Lit?yﬂock, Arkansas
RECEIVED BY x/@—\//

O
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